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DIRECTORS' REPORT- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

J. The directors arc pleased to present their report together with the audited separate financial statements of The Four 

Elements PCC (the 'Compuny') for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

2. The Comonny 

The Company wns inco,pora1ed under the Companies Act 200 I as a public company limited by shares on May 16, 

2008. The Company is a Protected Cell Company and was granted a Catei:ory 1 Global Busine~ Licence on May 

21, 2008. Its regis1erod office is located at 7A, 7th Floor, Ebene Mews, 57, Ebene Cybcrcity, Ebenc, Mauritius. 

l. Principnl activity 

The principal activity of the Company is 10 act as a Collective Investment Sche 

4. Results and djyjdends 

l11e results of the Company are set out in the statement of profit or loss and'Olher comprehensive income. 

The directors do not necommend the payment of dividend dividend for Ille year under review (2012: USD 
17,719,240 (EUR 13,782,856)). 

S. Statement of directors' responsibililics in rcspc:c:l of the financial statements 

Company law requines the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs and of the results of the Company. In preparing those financial statements, the 
directors are required lo: 

• select suitable accounting policies and thon apply lllem consistently; 

• make judgements and estimates lllat arc reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether lntemntional Financial Reporting Stundards have been followed, subject to any material 
depanurcs disclosed and explained in Ille financial statements; and 

• prepare the fimmcial statements on the going concern basis unless il is inappropriate lo presume that 
the Company will continue in business. 

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requinements in preparing the fioancial statements. 

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at 

any time the financial position of the Company and to enable 111cm to ensure that the financial statements comply 

with the Companies Act 200 I. They arc also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence 
for taking neasonablc steps for Ille prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

D 

<::::::...-r<;;o;jr,o~rate Secretary 

Belvedere Management Li1nited 

Date: o 8 SEP 2~n 
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(i) COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

The Company is commitlcd to the hii:J,cst standard of business intesrity, transparency and professionalism in all its 
activities to ensure that U1e activities within the Company are manngcd eU1ically and responsibly to enhance business 
value for all slokcholdcrs. As an essential part of this commitment, the board subscribes to and is fully committed to 
complying with the Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius. 

The direc1ors continuously consider the implica<ions of best practice corporate governance and are or opinion thot the 
Company complies with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance in all material aspects. 

(ii) HOLDING Sl'RUCTURE & COMMON DIRECTOR 

(a) The holding structure up to nnd including the ultimate holding Company is as illustrated below: 

Jacobu ~ verhardus Kellermann 

David Dawson Cosgrove Bevedere Nomin ltd Nominee 

100% 

Kim Pro 

50% 

STONEWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 
(Incorporated under the International Business Companies Act 1994) 

100% 

ROLMANAGEMENTLTO 
(Incorporated under the section 24 of the Companies Act 2001) 

100% 

THE FOUR ELEMENTS PCC 
(Incorporated under the section 24 of the Companies Act 2001) 
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(ii) HOLDING STRUCTURE & COMMON DIRECTOR (CONTD) 

(b) The names of common direcrors at each level ofrhe struciurc arc: 

COMMON DIRECTORS .. ~ .., 
~ ::, .., C ~ -o 

"' 0 "' 
..l C ,::, .. ::, u Oireclors .. .:l Ii .:l i i .:i 

0 .. _ 
Q E~ f\f ;; u 

.. .. 0 0 C ..l .., = E ;t: ~ er: <> ..... .. ·e E .. .. - .. !i .. -= ... .. - .. ., 0 0 ii 0 C O .. ... -"' 2: ... .. <> :c " 1-s,"' ,. ... iii i ~ 
Onvid Cosgrov• • • • • • • Lnval Low How lluni: • Hans Poler Bopp • 
M~dnla Mullegndoo • 
RaniJcebun • Francess Henriette • Rajindersingh Borthosow • Kennelh Mainard • • 

(iii) SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% OF THE COMPANY 

Major shareholders 

At 31 December 2013. the following shareholder holds directly or indirectly 5% or more of the ordinary 

Name or~hnreholder 

RDL Management Limited 

lofe-rest 
% 

100 

Number of 

Shnres 

1 

Except for the above. no person has reported any malerial inlcrcsl of 5% or more of the cquily share capilal of lhe 
Company. 

(iv) DIVIDEND POLICY 

Whilst the Managemenl Board has not determined a formal dividend policy, other than thal contained in Clause 51 of 
the Constitucion of the Company. ii endeavours 10 pay dividends thal reOec1 lhc Company's financial performance 
at\er taking into account the funding requirement of lhc Company's current and forthcoming projec1s. Mnnagement 
will ensure tha& the Company salisfies the solvency test al each dividend declaraiion in compliance with lhe 
Companies Acl 2001 (as amended). 

No dividend was paid nor declared for the yeQr ended December 31, 2013 ond 2012. 

(v) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

(a) Comp()Sifion 

Director's Profile 

Kenneth Maillard 

Kenne1h Maillard is a fellow ofrhe Association ofChanered Cenified AccountanlS and also an Associate Member of 
lhc Socie1y of Trusts ond Esta le Planners. Kenneth has extensive experience In 1he offshore sector both in Mauritius 
nod lntematioMlly. His experience covers Protceicd Cell Companies, Investment Funds. and Collec1ivc lnveslmenlS 
Schemes elc. 
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(v) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT'D) 

(o) Compwition (conl'd) 

Direc1ofs Profile (cont'd) 

Dnvid Cosgrove 

3(b) 

David Dawson Cosi;rovc acts as an independenl consullan1 for a number of inveslment manager l' 'Q!ldwidc. He 
specialises in assisting investment companies develop and manage their «-spec1ive businesses. I-le has been a direc1or 
of a number o f in1cma1ional invcs1ment management companies. He also runs his own private equiiy fund which 
investes into a number of international financial services companies. He is a director of a number of"'Gucmscy 
invcstmenl companies including four Protected Cell Companies. He is also a director of 6 Mauritian Prolected Cell 
Companies . 

The Company's Constitution provides that the board of the Company shall consist of a maximum of seven directors. 

Of the two members serving al year-end, both were executive direc1ors. 

All dircclors receive limely information so that they are equipped to play as full a parl as possible in board meetings. 
All board members have access to the Company Secretary for any further information they require. The Sectetary 

All directors are required lo submit themselves for re-election every year. New directors are appoinled lo the board by 

(b) Other direc1orships(in listed companies) held by the d irectors are: 

0 • "' - ' ~ -.. 8 C f (J ~ = "i:l ~ ~ " "" " ... C: 0.. -g 
.3 " 

u .'.i 7i E Q .c E' &; :,: 0 0 0 

Directors G Gu 
Kenneth Mainard • + 
David Dawson Cosgrove • • 

e) Shares purchased Hd sold during lhe year are as follows: 

No shores have boon purchased or sold in the Company during the year. 

(vi) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Please refer 10 page 47 of the Notes to the Financial Stalemcnls. 

(vii) DIRECTORS' DEALING IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY 

The directors have had no dClllings in the shares oflhc Company . 

(viii SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE 

No member of lhe senior management hiis been appointed to the Company other than 1he Directors. 
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(ix) CONSTITUTION 

The new constitution of the Company adopted on 25 May 20 IO does not provide for any ownership 
restrictions or pre-emption rights. It is in ni;rccmcnt with the Companies Act 200 I (as amended). 

(x) SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT AFFECTING THE GOVERNANCE OF THE 
COMPANY BY THE BOARD 

There was no such agreement during lhc year under review. 

(xi} TIIIRD PARTY MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

There was no agreement between third parties and the Company or its Subsidiaries during 1hc year under 
revi~v . The Company had, however, entered into an Investment Management Agreement wi1h RDL 
Management Limited on O I December 2008. RDL Management Limited is a company indirectly owned by 

one of tl1e directors and resolution of any potential conflict of interest arisin; as a resuh of the role of tl1e 
lnves1men1 Manascr is governed by the Conflict of Interest section of the Prospeclus of the Company. 

(xii} DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

Rtmuneration 
from company 

on which 
Remuneration Remuneracion director serves as 

Crom lhe from Subsidiary representative 
Directors Comoanv Comoanies or the Comoanv Total 

USD USD USD USD 
David C05~rove 10,000.00 NIA N/A 10,000.00 
Kenneth Mnlllnrd 10,000.00 NIA NIA 10,000.00 

(xiii} REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY 

The Board is responsible for 1he remuneration scrategy of the Company: 

The following pilnciples are used to determine the proper remunerations levels: 

• Remuneration practices arc structured to provide clco.r differentiation between individuals with regard to 
perfonnancc; 

• Strong incentives are created for superior performance; 
• Top contributors are awarded significan1ly higher bonuses; and 
• Underperfonmcrs are not rewarded and steps are lllken to encourage individuals to improve performance or 
leave the Company in line with accepted practices . 

Rernunerotion is reviewed annually after takins cognisance of market nonms and practices as well as ndditional 
responsibilities placed on directors and employees. 

Non-Executive directors receive an annual fee for their knowledge, experience and insight given 10 the board. 
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(xiv) BOARD COMMITTEES 

a) The Corporate Govcrnan~ Committ~ 

The Corporate Governance Committee acts as a useful mechanism for making recommendations to 
the board on all corporate governance provisions to be adopted so that the board remains effective and 
complies with prevailing corporate governance principles. The Comminee is made up solely of 
independent executive directors and meets at least once a year. 

The Committee has the following responsibilities: 
• Determine, agree and develop the Company's general policy on corporate governance in 
accordance with the Mauritius Code of Corporate Governance; 
• Ensure that disclosures arc made in the annual rcpon in compliance with the isclQSUre provisions of 
the Code; 
• Determine, agree and develop the Company's general policy on C/le<j.Utive and senior management 
remuneration; 

• Detemiine specific remuneration packages for executive di=tors of the Company; 
• Determine the level of non-executive and independent non-<:xecutive fees to be recommended to the 
board (or: shareholders at the annual meeting of shareholders); 

• Review at least annually, the terms and conditions of executive directors' service agreements; 
• Determine any grants to executive directors and any senior employees made pursuant to the 
Company's executive share scheme (if any); 
• Co-ordinate its activities with the chairperson of the board and the chief executive (if any) and 
consult them in formulating the committee's remuneration policy and specific remuneration packages; 
• Recommend to the board broad framework and cost of executive remuneration; 
• Consult other non-execulive directors (if any} in its evaluation of the chairperson of the board and 
the chief executive (if any). 
• Make recommendations to the board on appointment of new executive and non-executive directors, 
including composition and balance of the board; 

• Regular review of the board structure, size and composition and make recommendations with 
regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary; 
• Identify and nominate candidates for approval of the board to till vacancies, put in place plan of 
successio11, in particular for the chairperson and the chief executive (if any); 

• Make recommendations for the contirtuatlon (or not) in services of .any director who has rcach~'CI the 
age of70 ; 

• Recommend direclors reriring by rotation for re-election; 

• Have due regard for principles of governance and code of best practice; and 
• Liaise with the board in relation to the preparation of the committee's report to shareholders. 

b) The Aud ii Commlllce 

The Commiuee meets at once a year under the chairmanship of an executive director of the Company. 
The Committee consists solely of independent executive directors and accounlants working on the 
Company's accoun1s. All members of the audit committee arc financially literate. 
The role, objective and responsibilities of the Committee include: 
• to monitor the integrity of the financial statemenls and financial information included in the Annual 
Report of the Company; 
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(xh') BOARD COMMITTEES (CONrD) 

b) The Audil Committee (cont'd) 

3(c) 

• to review financial statements with both management and external auditors prior to their approval; 
• to review the Company's internal financial control, public disclosure of financial information policy 
and (unless addressed by a separate risk commiuee or by the board itself) the risk management 

• to receive reports from and monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company's inte~ at dit func 
• 10 make recommendations to the board in relation to lhe appointmenl of lhe external auditors and to 
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors; 

• to monitor and review the external auditors' independence, objectivity and effectiveness; and 

• to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external audit~ to supply non-audit servi, 

The terms of reference of the Audit Comminee have been approved by the board and are reviewed as 
necessary. The Comminee has satisfied its responsibilities for the year) n compliance with its terms 

c) The Boar<! Rlsk Committee (if separately constltured) 

The Board Risk Committee meets on a regular basis and has delegated au1hority from the board for 
the quality, integrity and reliability of the Company's risk management. The objectives of the 
• Assist the board in the discharge of its duties relating to corporate accountability and the risk in 
tenns of management, assurance and reporting; 

• Review and assess the integrity of the risk control systems and ensure that risk policies and 
strategies are effectively managed; 

• Set out th<: nature, role, responsibility and authority of risk management work; 

• Outline the scope of risk management work and help the Board define the risk appetite of the organisi 
• Monitor external developments relating to the practice of corporate accountability and the reporting 

of specifically associated risk, including emerging and prospective impacts; and 

(xiv) BOARD COMMITTEES 

c) The Board Risk Committee (ifsepararely consri1u1ed) 

• Provide an independent and objective oversight and review of the information presented by 
management on corporate accountability and lhe reporting of specifically associated risk, also taking 
into account of reports by management and the Audit Comminee to the board on financial, business 

The Risk Committee's terms of reference include: 

• Review together with Company's legal advisor, of any legal matters that could have a significant 
impact on the Company's business; 

• Review of executive management reports detailing the adequacy and overall effectiveness of the 
Company's risk management function and its implementation by management, and reports on internal 
• Review of risk philosophy, strategy and policies recommended by executive management and 
consider reports therefrom; 

• Ensure compliance with policies, and overall risk profile of the Company; 

• Review of the adequacy of insurance coverage; 

• Review of risk identification and measurement methodologies; 

• Monitor procedures to deal with and review the disclosure of information to clients; 

• Have due regard for principles of governance and codes of best practice; and 

• Liaise with 1he board in relation to the preparation of the Committee's report to shareholders. 
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i) Board attendance 

Corporate 
Governance Audit Risk 

Board Commltlce Committee Committee 
No. of meetings held during Che yea I 1 4 
Directors No. of meeting attended 
David Cositrove 1 0 4 
Kenneth Maillard ) ) 4 

(xv) RISI< MANAGEMENT 

(a) Responsibility and application 

The Board Is responsible for risk management and the procedures in place within the organisation 

for risk management. The board is responsible for the definition of the overall strategy for risk 

tolerance. Management and the assurance process on risk management are delegated to the Board 

Risk Committee. The Committee is responsible for the design and implementation of the risk 

management processes and day-to-day management of risk is performed by management. 

The Company's policy on risk management encompasses all significant business risks including 
physical, operational, human resources, technology, business continuity, financial, compliance 
and reoutalional which could influence the achievement of the Comoanv's objectives. 

The risk management mechanisms in place include: 

• A system for the ongoing identification and assessment of risk; 

• Development of strategies in respect of risk and definition of acceptable and non-acceptable 
levels of risk; 

• The communication of risk management policies lo all levels of the organisation as appropriate, 

and methods to ensure commitment, both by managers and by other employees, to the process; 

• The implementation of a documented system of internal control !hat closely aligns the control 
effort to the nature and importance of the risk; and 

• Processes to reduce or mitigate identified risks and contain them within the levels of tolerance 
defined by th_e board and management. 

(b) Structures and processes for identification of risks and risk management: 

There is clear accountability for risk management, which is a key performance area of line 
managers throughout the Company. Each manager is required to document how these risks will 
be managed and what mitigating activities have been put in place in respect of each significant 
risk. 
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(xv) RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

(c) Integration of internal control and risk management 

The system of internal control, which is embedded in all key operations, provides reasonable 
rather than absolute assurance that the Company's business objectives will be achieved within the 
risk tolerance levels defined by the board. The effectiveness of the internal control syGms are 
reviewed quarterly by the Cornminee and the review covers all internal control systems including 
financial, operational, compliance and risk management. 

(d) Assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management process 

Regular management reponing, which provides a balanced assessment of kctY risks and controls, 
is an important component of board assurance. The finance depart~nl provides c nfirmation that 
financial and accounting control frameworks have operated satisfactorily. The board also receives 
assurance from the Audit Committee, which derives its information, in pa~ from regular internal 
and external audit reports on risk and internal control throughout the Company. 

(e) Management of key risks identified 

Within the Company, the risk elements are viewed under the following headings: 

• Operational risks: Operations risk is defined as risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, people and systems or from external events. Operational loss events have 
significant negative impact on the market value of insurers. 

• Human resource risks : Losses arising from acls inconsistent wilh employment, health and 
safely laws, personal injury claims, etc. 
• Compliance risks: Dishonest or fraudulent acts intended to defraud or misappropriate property 
or circumvent regulations, law and policies and involves at least one internal party and a thirty 
• Ph)'Sical risks: Losses due lo fire, cyclones, riots, elc. 

• Technology risks: Includes hardware and software failures, system development and infraslructu, 
• 811sinc.v.v continuity risks: Losses from failed transaction processing. and process management. 

• Reputarional risks: Losses due to unintentional or negligent failure to meet a professional 
obligation 10 specifi ~ lients or from the nature or design of a product. 
• Financial rfs/cs: The identification and management of these risks as discussed in the financial st. 

In conducting its annual review of the effectiveness of risk management, the board considers the 

key findings from the ongoing monitoring and reporting processes, management assertions and 

independent assurance reports. The board also takes account of material changes and trends in the 

risk profile and considers whether the control system, including reporting. adequately supporls 
the board in achieving its risk management objectives . 
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(xv) RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

During the course of the year the board considered the Company's responsiveness to changes 
within its business environment The board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process, which has 
been operational during the year. 

(xvi) TIMETABLE·IMPORTANT EVENTS 

Some of the key milestones arc as follows: 

• Final Results • 
• Annual General Meeting -

(xvii) STAKEHOLDERS' RELATlONS AND COMMUNICATION 

The Board aims to properly understand the information needs of all s~areholders and places great 
importance on an open and meaningful dialogue with all those involved with the Company. lt 
ensures that shareholders ore kept infonned on maners affecting the Coi;npony. The Company's 
website is used to provide relevant information. Open lines of communication are maintained to 
ensure transparency and optimal disclosure. All Board members are requested to attend annual 
general meeting, to which all shareholders are invited. 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES 

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for: 

(i) adequate accounting records and maintenance of effective internal control systems; 
(ii) the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Company as 

at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for that period and 
which comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and 

(iii) the selection of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements. 

The external auditor-s are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presente. 

The directors report that: 

(i) adeqllllte accounting records and an effective system of internal controls nnd risk mnnogement 
have been maintained; 

(ii) appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates 
have been used consistently; 

(iii} International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to. Any departure in the interest of 
fair presentation has been disclosed, explained and quantified. 

(iv) the Code of Corporate Governance has been adhered to. Reasons have been provided where there 
hos not been compliance. 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 

............. -.<IA~t~ .............. .. 
Director Director 
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REPORT OF TllE MANAGER· \'EA It ENPlm l>ECEMllER 31, 2013 

RDL MAnagemenl Lid (1hc "Manager") has pleasure in submitting ils report for The Four Elements PCC (the 

·company') for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Srarement nf t,,fnnagcr'.f Rcspmuihilitit:.s 
The Manager is responsible (or prepMins tinuncial S!Ulemenls for each financiol period which give a true •nd foir view 

of the stale of affairs of the Company for that period. In preparing d,ese financial statements. the Manager is required 

10:-

Select suilable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: 
Prepare the financial Slatcmc-nts on lhc going concern b:Jsis unless it is. inappropriate to presume lhal lhc Company 
will continue in business. 

The Manager is responsible for keeping prorer ac<:ounting records whkh di~lose with reasonable accuracy at any lime 

the financial position of the Company, and 10 enable it 10 ensure that the financial statemenlS comply with 1he 1erms of 

1he Compeni,-s Acl 200 I. The Manager is :,lso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and hence for 

taking reasonable steps for 1he prevention of fraud, error and non-<:ompliance wilh low and regulntion. 

Acti, 1iti~ nnd StAtu~ 

The !'our Elements PCC was ineorpon11cd under the Companies Act 2001 as a public company limited by shen:s on 

May 16, 2008. The Company is a Protected Cell Company and a Collective lnveS1111en1 Scheme. 

Dircc(ors of the Managtr 

Rojindersinsh Borthosow 
David Dawson Cosgrove 

Morie Michele Franccss Henriette 

Distril)ulion Policy 
There will be no distribution of income to shateholders. AU income accruing lo the Company will be added to the 

capital oflhe Class Fund from which ii is derived and reOected in 1he Net Assel Value. 

Scheme Particulars 
l'ull details o(thc Company can be found in its Scheme Particulars. copies of which can be obtained free of charge from 

the Manager. 

The infomiation contained on the Corporate Information page forllls part of this report. 

Approved by 1he Board of Directors of the Manager and sisned on its behalf by: 

........ ~ ............ .. 
David Dawson Cosgrove 

Date: 0 8 SEP 2~1 ~ 

~ei·~~~~~·Henriette 

Dute: Q 8 SEP 2~1 } 
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SECRE1'ARV'S CERTIFICATE· YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 21H3 

We certify lhat, lo !he bcs1 of our knowled&e and belief, lhc Company has filed wilh lhc Registrar of Companies all such 

returns as are required of the Company under section I 66(d) of the Companies Acl 200 I for the year ended Dec•mb.r 
31, 2013. 

-=-,.... 
for llelvNl<re Monogcn1cn1 Llmllctl 

Corporate Secretary 

Dote: 0 8 SEP 2~1 ~ 
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REPORT OFTIIE INVESTMENT MANAGER- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

20JJ Er-0nomic Review 

Most global stock markets finished (he year just as they staned, posting double-digit gains in lhc fourth quarter, resulting 
in another good year in 2013. Despite the many negative headlines and worries by investors during 2013, lhe story line 
for !he 2013 invesunent marketS turned out to be quile simple. Slow and steady global e<:onomic growth, engineered by 
lhe various cenlral banks' low interest rate policies , conlinued to produce a perfect backdrop for risk-based investmenls. 
This resulled in another year of good gains in equity markets, worldwide. While bonds and real assetsuid not fare well 
over the year (and generally produced negative relums) , inves1ors who hnd well-diversified portfolios experienced 
another excen1ional year. 

In !he U.S., the S&P 500 Index returned 10.51% in lhe fourth quarter, bringing 2013 re1ums to 32.4%, !he highest 
cnlendar year return in more lhan IS years. To pul this into con1ext, U.S. equity more than doubled tlte relum for stocks 
in foreign markets (which consist of both developed and etnerging countries). Wilhin the U.S., small-cap Slocks 
performed the best in 2013, returning 38.8% as me,uurcd by the Russell 2000 Index. 

Bond investors, who are already yield starved, con1inue 10 find the going 1ough. as lhe improving economy and the Fed's 
capering of quanlita1ivo-casing activities arc proving lo be hampering the assel class. For !he quaner, the U.S. bond 
market losl --0.1%, as me,uurcd by the Barclays U.S. Aggrega!C Bond Index. For !he year, bonds returned -2.0%, the 
lowes1 calendar yen, performance for bonds since 1994. Negative re1ums in bonds occurred in 2013 as 1he income 
received from bonds was more than ofl'Sel by a decline in value Iha! resulled from a rise in interest rates. 

Real asselS arc typically inOation-scnsitive investmenls !hat play 1111 importanl role in portfolios by providing investors a 
defence from unexpccled spikes in inflation. Like bonds, lhese assets also had a difficull year in 2013 as excess capacity 
and high unemployment continue to curb inflation expectations in the market. Treasury Inflation Prolected SC<:urilies fell 
2.0% for invcslors in the founh quarter and poslcd a return of -8.6% for lho year. Ocher real assets, such as commodilies 
and real esta1e securilies, also had a very disappointing ycnr. 

Asset Class Returns - 2013 

40 f 30 

20 

10 

Source: lipper for lm•es.lment Ala,,ageme/11 Bloomberg 
&sis : To10/ return, i11 local currency 
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- -~"'"-/!<'--------~ .. ·~-------~ -
<.f'"' 



TIIE FOUR ELEMENTS PCC 

7 
REPORT Of THE INVESTME NT MANAGER- \ ' EAR ENDED DECEMBER JI, 2013 

In regards 10 the vnrious marke1 indicators, the FTSE All Share gained 18.7% over the year, which was well behind lhe 
S&P 500, which had an Impressive period, retuming 32.4%, with lhc Euro Stoxx 50 reluming 17.9'1/o. Global equities, as 
measured by the MSCI World Index was up oser 23.4% in US dollar lerms, over lhe same period. 

Sier ling improeed against the US dollar (2.0%), bul losl ground against the euro (-2.3%) over 2013. Commodilies hod n 

ncgalivc year, lhc main culprilS being precious metals, wilh gold losing -29.2 %, and pla1inum down around - I 4.S% for 
the period. A more diversilied measure ohhe gencrnl commodity index. is the S&P Goldman Snchs Commodily Index 
(an index comprising of a diversified basket of approximately 2S commodi1ies, across all sectors), Wl!S drassed down 
by its precious mecal exposure, losing -1.2% over lhe year. 

The global business cycle appears genemlly supponive of equilics, though the ou_,llook seems range-~d amid slow 
grow1h, hish policy uneercalnty, and mixed oullooks for emerging economies. The outlook t)?r global 1n1cres1 roles and 

bonds is more balanced. Many developed countries oonlinue to face tJscal and su-ucturnl chitlleng./ ln the U.S., mid­
cycle expansion remains resili<'nl, lhough maturing wilh only moderate sro1vt11. The fed's ' ncar-tem, intentions are less 
thnn clear, but monetary policy is likely to remain easy . 
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This repon is made solely to the members of THE FOUR ELEMENTS PCC, as a body. in accordance with 
Section 205 of the Compnnies Act 200 I. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' repon and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent pennined by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone othel"'-than the 
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the o~nions we have 
formed. , 

Report on lhe Finonclol SIJllements 

We have audited the separate financial statements of THE FOUR ELEMENTS PCC on pages 9 to 48 which 
comprise the statement of financial position at December 31, 20 l 3. the statement -of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Directors· Responslbiliry for the Financial Statemems 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reponing Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
200 I, and for such internal control as the directors detennine is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Respo11.vibilit)• 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
nudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence nbout the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessme nts, the aud itors consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that ore appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors, as wel I as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

800 & Co, a firm of ChartcrcdA.c.countants in MJu1ittus, is 3 mcinb<'r of 000 lntcrnat,ona, L,m1\Cd. a UK c.omp:.oy 1im1te>d by 
qu~r;mtcc. MC, forms p;ul o,f the itltcrnationat 000 nctwo1k of lnlk!pl!rnj\.•nt mcmbcr firms. 

800 is tile br.:i1ld n.inic fo, the ODO network ,ind for cnoeh of the BOO Member Fttms 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

Report on the Financilll Statements (continued) 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obwined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion, except as described below. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 
Existence 
The separate financial statements include an amount of Euro 33,763,323 representing investments, cash and cash 
equivalents. loans and interest receivable. We were unable to obtoin sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to its 
existence as at reporting date. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustment to this amount 
was necessary. 

Recoverabi/ir,, 
The separate financial statements include an amount of Euro 32,892,696 representing investments. loans :ind 
interest receivable. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to its recoverability as at 
reporting dute. Consequently. we were unable to determine whether any adjustn;ient to this amount was necessary. 

Q11ulifted Opinion • The Company 
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the separate financial statements on pages 9 to 48 give a true and fair view of the financial position and 
of the Company at December 31. 2013 and of its financial perform11nce and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting StandlU'ds and comply with the Companies Act 2001. 

Opinion - Tiu: Gro11p 

The Company which has investment in subsidiaries has not presented consolidated financial stotements as 
required by ll'RS IO 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. The fact that no consolidoted finoncial swtements hove 
been prepw-ed, is a departure from the requirements of IFRS I 0. 

Report on Other ugal and Regulatory Requirements 

Compm1ies ;let 2001 

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company. other than in our capocicy os auditors and dealings in 
the ordinary course of business. 

We have obtained all information and explanations we hove required except as described above under the "Basis 
for Qualified Opinion" paragraph. 

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Compnny as far as ii oppears from our 
exwnination of those records. 

0 8 SEP 23H 

Pon Louis. 
Mauritius. 

BDO&Co 
Chartered Acco111111111/s 

~~:1½ 
Kancyowabh:iy, FCCA 

Licensed by FRC 



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL l'OSITJON -DECEMBER 31, 2013 

ASSETS 

Investment property 
Investments i11 subsidiaries 
lnvesmiems at fair value through profit or loss 

Deposit on in•cstmen1s 
Cash and ~sh equivalents 

Margin nccounts 
Receivables 

Derivative financial ins.trumcnts 
Total u.ssC"ts 

Llabllltlc.s 

Payables 
Sh:uc application monies 

Current 1:1., liabilities 
Bank overdrnfi 
Derivative financial instruments 

Liallilitios ex.luding oet nsscts aUrlbutnble 

to holders of porti<ipating sbor.es 

Net assets attributable to holders of 
participating shares 

EQUITV 

Manosem<mt shore 

Toto) equity and liabilitirs 

Notcs 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

JO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

9 
12 

16 

2013 

EUR 

2,026,837 

7,519,016 

92,418,128 

$,180,116 

J,~38,254 

87,777,053 

756.129 

197,215.533 

11,224,205 

98,753 

132,217 

802,223 

51,714 

12,309,112 

184,906,420 

197.215,S33 

The financial statements hove 6':cn upprovcd for issue by the Boord of Dir«tors on: 0 8 
and signed on its behalf by: 

SE:P 2'.JH 

David Dawson Cossrovt 
Nome Signature 

9 

2012 

!:UR 

1,733,326 

31,420 

268,202,997 

469,276 

8,105,138 

J,'.!40,546 

73,118.640 

39.113 

352.940.456 

3.728.074 

26,282 
S,464 

660 

I 14,951 

3.875.431 

349,065.024 

352.940.456 

K~nnclll Jean Georgy M,1lll~rd 

Name 
~s------ 1gnn1urc 

Tiie notes on pages 13 1048 form an integral J>atl oftht financial sialcmcnts. 
Auditors' report on pages 8 and 8 (a). 



THE FOUR ELEMENTS rec 
10 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ANO OTHER COMl'REHENSIVE INCOME • YEAR ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Notes 

INCOME 
Interest income 

Dividend income 

Gain on hedge contract, margin and option 

Loan wrinen back 
Fair value gain on investmems in subsidiaries 
Fair value gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 

Other income 

EXPENSES 
Management and administration fees 

Marketing expenses 

Formation expenses 

Sundry expenses 

Bank charges 

Net loss on disposal of investments 

fair value loss on investments 

Loans receivable written off 

Impairment of loans receivable 

Purchase of ceded claims 

Transactions costs 

Professional fees 

Interest expense 

Loss before foreign exchange loss 

Foreign exchange loss 

Loss before taxation 

Taxation 

Loss for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

• Currency translation difference 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

The notes on pages 13 to 48 fonn an integral part of the financial statements. 

Auditors· repon on pages 8 and 3 (a). 

22 

15 

2013 2012 

EUR EUR 

11,778,258 10,811,870 

117,604 210,340 

332,4S1 265,826 
7,614,323 

6,915,903 

10,381,435 

561,340 512.477 

30,086,991 19,414,836 

2;831,973 4,611,027 

2,113,295 2,963,284 

6,310 16,062 

345,460 361,145 

127,098 140,826 

10,907,370 14,470,939 
9,534,847 

10,696,490 

11,640,419 

1,417,894 

580,371 275,231 

2,821,498 1,538,034 

4,096 6S0 

31,851,SSS 45,552,464 

(1,764,864) (26,137,628) 

(4,613,691} (885,194) 

(6,378,555) (27,022,322) 

(156,661} (32,857) 

(6,S35,216) (27,055,679) 

(6,142,313) (798.316) 

(12,677,529) (27,853,995) 
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11 
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS AlTRIIW'rAllLE 1'0 11O1,Dl::RS OF REDEEMABLI!. PARTICIPATING 

SIi ARES· YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Nole 

Net assets ollribuloblc lo shareholders al January I, 

Issue of redeemable shares 

Pnymen1s on red~mable shares re<leemed 

Tot•l compn:hcnsivc income for the year 

Dividends 18 

Ne1 ossels attributable lo shareholders u December 31, 

The notes on pages 13 to 48 (orm on integral part of the linanciot statements, 

Auditors' repon on pages 8 and S (a). 

2013 2012 

EUR EUR 

349,065,024 278,691,044 

66,958,495 235,210,625 

(218,439,!\70) (123,199,794) 

(12,677,529) (i 7,SSJ,99S) 

(13,782,856) 

184,906,420 349,065,024 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS. YEAR ENDED DllCl::MBER.31,2013 

Note 20(3 2012 

EUR EUR 

Cush nows from opcrallng ~ellvltlts 

Loss before taxation (6,378,555) (27.022,822) 

Adjustments for: 

lntel'C'$t income (II, 778.258) (10.811,870) 

Dividend income (117,604) (210,340) 

Interest expense 4,096 6SO 
Fair value gain on invc-stmcnts at fair value through profit or loss (10,427,442) 10.330,317 

Fair value gain on investments in subsidinries (6,91 S,903) 

Impairment of Joans re<:eivoble J0,G9G,490 11,640,419 

Net loss on disposal of investments 10,907,370 13.675.469 
(14,009,8116) (2,398.177) 

Changes in working capital: 

Receivables (8,996,221) 8&,156,073 

Payables 7,,6,131 (4,780,327) 

Mari;in accounts (297,708} 1,498,390 

Derivntive financial instruments (780.253! (1,599.449) 

Cash (used in)lgcnerated from oporutions (16,587,858) 80.876.SIO 

Interest rccciv<?d 11,778.258 10,811,870 

Tax ()3id (29,908) (36,520) 

lntCTCSt paid (4,09G) (650) 

Net ca5h (used ln)/gcncr:itcd (rom operating 

actMtlos (4,843,604) 9l.6Sl.210 

Cash flows from investing activilits 
Movement on invcslmcnlS 172,S?J,447 (200,691,373) 

Acquisition of invonlory property (322,564) (1,748,731) 

Dividend received 117,604 210,340 

Loans granted (I 8,Sl 5,481) 
N•t cash gtncrated rrom/(uscd In) lnvostlng aclMties 153,$73,00S (202.229,764) 

Cnsh flows from financing fttUvlll~ 

Proceeds from issue of redeemable sha~ -06,%8,49$ 235,210,625 

Payments on redemption of rcdeffllable shares (218,439.570) (123,199,794) 

Share appli<;ation monies 72,471 (359,460) 

Movcmcnl on borrowiitas-net (632,617) 

Nrt rash (used in)lgenerntctl from nnnnclng a~lvilics (15l,408,G04) 111,018.754 

(Dcercue)/i11crensc in ('llsb ond 
cash equivolenls (2,679,203) 440.200 

Cash and ca.sh e,iuivalents at January I. 8,104,478 8,447.189 

(De<:rease)iincrease (2,679,203} 440,200 

Effects of exchanse loss (1,047,383} (782.911 ) 

Cush ond cash e<juivalrnts 
at DoccmlHer 31, 9 4,377,893 8,104.478 

The notes on pages 13 to 48 fom, an intcgrol pnn of the financial slatemcnts. 

Auditors' reron on pages 8 ""d 8 (n). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3t,2013 

I. COMPANY PROFILE 

The Four Ekmenls PCC which holds a Category l Global Business Licence was incorporated under the Companies 

Acl 200 I as a public company limited by shares on May 16, 2008. The Company is a Protcclcd Cell Company 

whose principal activity is to act as a Collective Investment Scheme. Its registered office is localed at 7A, 7th Floor, 

Ebenc Mews, 57, Ebcne Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius. 

2. SJCNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounling policies adopted in the preparation of these financial slatemcnts are set out below: 

(a) Oasis of preparation 

The s,:poralc financial statements ofTliE FOUR ELEMENTS PCC comply with the Companies Acl 2001 and have 

been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reponing Standards (IFRS). TheJinnncial statements are 

prepared under lhc historical cost convenlion as modified by the revalualion of financial assets held at fair value 

through profit or loss. 

The preparation of financial slatcmcnts in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 

cstitnates. It also requires management to exercise its judgemeni in the process of applying the Company's 

accounting policies. These areas involving a higher degree of judgcmenl or complexity, or areas where assumptions 

and estimates are significan1 to the financial statements are disclosed in Nole 4. 

Standards, Ame11dments to p11bl/.shed Sta11dards and Jmerpreratio11.< effective in the repon/111: period 

IFRS 13, ·Fair value measurcmcnl', aims to improve consfalency and reduce complexity by providing a precise 

definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across 

lfRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be 

applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs. 

Standards, Amentlments ltJ published Stand,mls and /11terpretutlons effective In the report/11g period but not 

rclelevalll to the Company 

Amendment to IAS 1--,. "Financial statement presentation· regarding other comprehensive income. 
IFRS 10, 'Coosolida1ed financial statements' 
IAS 27, 'Scparale Financial Statements' 
IFRS 11, 'Jointanangemcnts' 
IAS 28, 'Investments in Assocratcs and Joint Ventures' 
IFRS 12, •oisclosurcsofintcrcsts in other entities· 

IAS 19, 'Employee benefits' 
IFRIC 20, 'Stripping costs in the production phase ofa surface mine' 
Amendment to IFRS 7, 'Financial instruments: Disclosures'. 
Amendment to IFRS I (Governmenl Loans) 

Annual Impro,·cmcnts to IFRSs 200~-201 I Cydc 

lFRS I (Amendment), ·First time adoption oflFRS' 
IAS I (Amendment), 'Presentalion of financial statements' 
IAS 16 (Amendment), 'Property, planl and equipment' 
IAS 32 (Amendment), 'Financial instruments: Presentation' 
IAS 34 (Amendment), 'Interim financial reporting' 
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NOTES TO TllE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Yt::AR ENDED DECEJ\UH:R 31, 2013 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING l'OLICIES (CONT'D) 

(a) Bnsis of prtp,1rallon (cont'd) 

Stttntlards. Amendmcnt.ir tu publlsltcd Standard., and /11tcrpretatlo11s issued bl4t not j't:f effective i11 the t<!potth1g 
period 

Certain standards. amendments 10 published standords and interNe1a1ions have ~n issued that ar.t'mnn'dntory for 
accounting periods bci;innins on or after Januo,y 1, 20 I 4 or later periods, but which the Company has not early 
adopted. 

At the reporting date of1hese financial statements, 1he following were in issue bu1 not yet effective: 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
!AS 32 Offscning r-inancial Assets ond financial Liabilities (Amendments to !AS 32) 

Investment Entities (Amendmenls to IFRS 10, ll'RS 12 and !AS 27) 

ll'RIC 21: Levies 
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- financial Asseis (Amendments t() JAS 36) 
Nova1ion of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting(Amendmcnts 10 IAS 39) 

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Hedge Accounting and amcndmems to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39) 

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Conlributions (Amendments to IAS 19) 

1\nnual Improvements 10 IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 

Annual lmprovemenlS 10 ll'RSs 2011-2013 cycle 

Where relevant, !he Company is still evalualini; the effec, of these Standards, amendments to published Standards 
and lnt"'J>retations issued but not yet effective, on the presentation of iIS financial statements. 

(b) llordgn curr~ncios 

(i) Functional a11d presentation cun·e11cy 
!AS 21 (revised 2003) rcquircs 1hat the Compnny de1ermines its functional currency which then b«omes the 

currency in wbich the transactions are recorded. 

The Company rnay adopt a presentation eurr~ncy, (that is. the eurrcncy in y,,t,ich its financial statemenls are 
presented) that differs from the functional currency and the en1i1y does not operate in o hyperinflationary 
environment. Then the resul!S and financial position of that entity are translated according to the provisions of lAS 
21 (revised). 

The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is not the currency of• hypcrin0ationary 
economy ore translated imo a different presentation currency using the following procedures:· 

usscts and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented arc tronsla1ed at the closing rate al the 

reporting date: 
income and expenses in the slatements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ore transl"tcd at 
c~change rates al the dates oflhc transoctions; nnd 

all resulting cxchnui.e differences are reco~niscd in the sta1cmcn1 of profit or loss and 01hcr oomprchensive 
income. 
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR !lNDEI> DECEMBER 31, 2013 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'll) 

(b) Foreign curren<ios (con('d) 

(ii) Tran.,aaio11., and hafa11ce., 
Foreign currency transnctions arc lranslnt<:d into th<:-functional currency using U'lc exchange rntc-s prevailing on the 
da1es of die transactions. l'oreigu exchange gains and losses rcsulling from the seulement of such tr.uisactions and 
from the trans.1:Jtion at year-end cxch:Jnl:l,C rntcs of monetary assets liabilities denominated in foreign cucrcncics arc 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

(c) Rc\•couc recognition 

Revenue is recognised to 1he ex1en1 that it is probable that 11,e oconomie boncfilS will now to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. 

• Dividend income - when the shareholds'l''S right to receive payment is established. 
• Interest income .. on a timc,.p1'oportion basis using the elTective-interest me1hod. 

(d) lnvcs(mcnts in suh$idiarie< 

Separate jinaw:ia/ Sl(Jtemcm., nfthe im•c.,tor 
In the separate financial statements of 1he inves<or, investments in subsidiary companies are carried al cosl The 
carrying amoum is reduced to recognise any impairment in the value of individual investments. 

(c) lnvoslment propenios 

Investment proponics arc mcnsu.-.:d initially at cost, includins transaclion costs. The car,ying amount includes the 
cost of rcplacini; part of an existin,g investment property al the lime that cost is incurred if the recoenition criteria 
are me1; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an inveslmcnt property. Subsequent to initial recognition. 
i1westmen1 pro~ies are stated at fair value. which reflects markcl conditions at the reporting date. 

Goins or losses arising from chanses in foir value of investm•nt properties arc included in !he Slatement of profil or 
loss and other comprehensive income in 1he year in which d1cy arise, 

Transfers nre made to or frotn investmenl property only when there Is a change in use. r-or a transfer from 
investment property to owner occupied properly, 1he decmod cost for subsequent accoun1i11s is 1he fair value at the 
date of change in use. If owner occupied property bocomos an investment property, the Group accounts for such 
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plalll and equipment up to the dale of change in use. 

No assets held under operaling lease have been classified os investment property. 
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMl(NTS • YEAR ENDED DECEMBf,R 31, :2013 

2. SICNJFICAN1' ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

(l) Finnntlol lns1run1cnts 

financial assets and financial liabilities on: recognised 011 1he Company's statement of financial position when the 
Company has become a party 10 the contmctual provisions oflhc instrument. 

The Company's accounting policies in respect of 1he main financial instruments ore se1 oul below: 

(i) Fioaocial asscls 

(A) Categories ofjirmncial assets 
The Company classify ils financial assets in the following category: financial assets througll profit or loss. 

The classification depends on die purpose for which the inves1men1s rere acquired. Management de1ermines 
1he classification of its investments al initial recog/\ilion and r ... evaluatcs this designation at every reporting 
dole. 

Flnandal nsscts or fair value through profit or luss 
This calegory has two sub,calcgories: financial assets held-for-lrading, and those desisnoted at fair value 
through profit or loss ot inception. 

A financial assel is classified in lhis category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short 1crm 
or if so designated by manasemen1. Derivalives arc also cotei:orised as held·for•troding unless !hey ore 
designotcd os hedges. 

(B) R~c"gnllia11 and measurement 
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on 11ade date, the dnte on which 1he Company commit to 
purchase or sell the asse1. lnves1ments arc initially measured at fair value plus lransaction com for all 
financial asse1s excepl 1hose thal are carried at foir value through profil or loss. 

Financial assets carried al foir value through profi1 or loss arc initially recognised at fair value, and transac1io11 
costs ore expensed in 1he srn1emen1 ofprofil or loss and olhcr comprehensive income. 

Financinl assels are derecogniscd when lhc rii:hts to receive cash flows from the investmenlS have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has 1rnnsfe1Ted substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

Available-for-sale financial asse1s and financial assclS al fair value through profit or loss are subsequently 
c•nied at 1heir fnir values. Loons and receivables and held·lo-ma1urity invcs1mcn1s are ca11ied at amortiscd 
cost using the effec1ive interest method. 

Investments in equity instruments 1h01 do not have a quoted market price in an oc1ivc morkel and whose fair 
value c:innot be reliably measured are measured al cost. 

Roalisod and unn:aliscd gains nnd losses arising from chW1Jtc'S in the fair value of lhe financial nssets at fair 
value lhrough profit or loss ca1esory are included in the s1atemen1 of profit or Joss and other comprehensive 
income in 1he period in \Illich they orisc. 

Unrealised sains and losses arising from chunscs in the fair value of financiul assets clnssified as available-for. 
sale me recognised in 01.her comprehensive income. · 

When financial assets cl:l.SSified as available•for•sok ore sold or impaired, 1he occumulaled fair value 
ndjuslments arc included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as gains and losses 
on finnndal assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS • YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CON1''D) 

(f) Finonciol instruments (cont'd) 

(i) 

(C) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Fln•nclnl usscls (cont'd) 

/mpairmcw ofjinollf:ial assets ..,.. 
The Compnny assess at the end of euch reponing period \\1iether there is objective evidence lhar a linuncial 
nss,,t or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case oflinancial assets clnssified as availoblc-for-sale, 
a significant or prolonged decline in lhc fair vnluc of lhe security below its cost is considered in det•r'!)ining 
whether the securities are impaired. lf any such evidence cxisls for available-for-sale linnncial nssels, the 
cumulo1ive loss - measured as the differerx:e between acquisition cosl fid lhc currc1' fair value, less any 
impairmcnl loss on lhat fim1ncial asset previously recognised in equil}' • is removed from equity and 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and oth.r comprehensive income. If the fair value of a 
previously impaired debt security increases and the increase can be objectively related 10 an event occurring 
after lhe impairment loss wos recognised, the impQirment loss is rever,etand the reversal recognised in the 
slatemem of profit or loss and other oomprehcnsivc income. lmpainnenl losses for uo investment in an equity 
instrument nre not reversed throu~h the statement of profit or loss and 0~1er comprehensive income. 

RNch•ablcs 
Receivables are stated at their fair value. 

Cnsh and cnsh equivalents 
Cash comprises cash at bank nnd bank overdraft. Cash equivalents are shon term. highly liquid investments 
thot arc rcodily convertible 10 known amoun1s of cllSh and which are subj eel to an insignificanl risk or change 
in value. 

Puyobles 
Pnynbles ore stoted at fair value and subsequenlly mcnsurcd as amortised cost using the effective interest 
method 

Drrhmtivc !inuocinl jnstramcou 
Derivatives arc ini1ially recognised al fair value on lhe date a dcrivalivc conlroct is entered into und Qte 
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The mclhod of recognising the resulting ~oin or loss depends on 
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging inslrumenl, and if so, the noture of the item being hedged. 
The Company designate certain derivative$ as either; 

hedses of1he fair value of recognised liabililies (fair ;,Jue hedge): 
hedses of u panicular risk associaled wilh a recognised liability or a highly probable forecast transaction 
(cash How hedge): or 
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation ( net invcs1mcn1 hedge). 

The Compnny documcnl, 01 !he inception of 1he transaction, the relationship bclwccn hedging ins1rumen1s 
and hedged items, as well as ilS risk muoagemelll objectives and stralegy for undor1oking various hedging 
transoc1ions. The Company nlso documents its assessment, bolh at hedge inccplion and on on ongoing basis. 
of whether the derivatives thnt are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offS¢1tin& changes i11 
fair values orcashOows of hedged items. 

The fair values of various derivative instruments us,,d for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 12. 

(a) Fair value hedges 
Changes in lhe foir value of derivolives that arc designated and qualify as fair value hed11,cs arc recorded 
in the slatement of profit or Joss and olher comprehensive income, together wilh any changes in the fair 
vnlue of the hedged asset or liability lhat arc attributable to the hedi.ed risk. 
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NOTES TO TUE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. YEAR ENDED DECEl\'lllEIUI, 2013 

2. SICNIF'ICANT ACCOUNTJNC POLICIES (CONT'D) 

(I) l'inuncinl instruments (cont'cl) 

(v) Derivative tinandol instruments {cont'd) 

{a) Fair volue hedges (com'd) 

The Company apply only fair value hedge accounting for hedi;ing fixed interest risk on borrowings. The 
gain or loss relming 10 the cffo<:tivc portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed ra1f borrowings is 
re<:ognised in the siatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within finance costS. The 
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portio11 is rccogniS<?d in the s101cmen1 or profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income within other gains'(losscs)- nel. Changes in the fair value of the hedge fixed rate 
borrowings a11ribu1•ble to interest rate risl< arc recognised in !,he s1atemen1 of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income wichin finance costs. ( 

lflhe hedge no louger meets lhc cnloriu for hcd(\e nccounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount ofa 
hedged i1em for which the cffC(:tive interest me&hod is used is amortised 10 profit or loss over the period 
to m:Jturity. 

(b) Cash flow hedge 
The effective portion of changes io the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qunlify os cash 
Oow hedses is re<:ognised in olher comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating 10 1he ineffective 
portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or Joss and other comprehei>sivc income 
within 'other gainsl(losscs) • ncl'. 

Amounls ae<:Umulatcd in equity are rcclnssified 11> profit or toss in lhe periods when the hcdiscd item 
affects profit or loss. The gain or lo$$ relating lo the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging 
variable role borrowin,ss is recogniS<?d in the slatcmcnt of profi1 or lo$$ and other comprehensive income 
wilhin finance costs. The gain or loss relating 10 the effective portion of forward foreign exchange 
con1roc1s hedsing expon sales is rcco!,JliS<d in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income within sales. However, when lhc forecast lronsaetion that is hedged rcsulls in the re<:ognition of a 
non-financial asset, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity arc transferred from equity and 
included in the initial measurement oflhe eos1 of the asse1. 

When a hedsing instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no loni;cr mcctS the criteria for hedge 
accoun1ing.;ny cumulative gain or loss existing in equity'at that time remains in equity and is recognised 
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit or loss ond other 
comprehensive income. When a forecnsl 1ronsac1ion is no Jonger expected to occur, the cumul:Jtivc gain 
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred 10 the statement of profit or loss ond other 
comprehensive income within 'olher snins/(losscs)- net'. 

(c) Net investment hedge 
Hedges of net invcs1mcn1S in foreign opera1ions arc accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any 
gain or loss on the hcdising instrument relating to the efTcctivc ponion of the hedge is rccob'Tlised in other 
comprehensive income. The snin or loss rcla1ing ro the incffC(:tive portion is recognised immediately in 
the statement ofproftt or loss nnd other comprehensive income within 'other snins/(loss<?S)- not'. Goins 
and losses accumulotcd in equity are iucludcd in the statement of profit or loss and other comptehcnsive 
income ,v1,cn the foreign opcrn1ion is pnnially disposed of or sold. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- YEAR ENDED DECEMlll::R 31, 2013 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONT'D) 

(I) Financial instrum,nts («>nt'd) 

(v) Derivative On:,ncial instruments (cont'd) 

(d) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss 
Certain derivolivc instruments do not qualify for hedge accounling and arc accounted for at fair value 
through profit or loss. Cbanges in the fair value of these derivative inSltUments of comprehensive income 

within 'other gains/(losses) • net' . 

(vi) 

(vii) 

Margin accoun•s ~ 
Margin accounts represent margin deposils held in respect of open exchani;e-traded fuiurcs contracts . 

Management shnr, 
The mannsement shares arc classified os equity and held by RDL. Manai: emcm Lid. The management shares 

carry one vote per share managemem votins right. 

(viii) Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that arc not 
quoted in the active market. They arise when the company provides money, goods or services direetly to a 

debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. 

(g) lmpalnncnt ofasscts 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amonisntion and are tested annually for impairment. 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for tho amount by 

which the carrying amount of the asset exc,:cds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounl is the higher of an 

asset's fair value less com to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets ore grouped at 

the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 

(h) Provi~ions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuh of past events 
and it is probable lhal an outnow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be required to settle the obligation . 

(i) Rel a t..i parties 

Related parties are individuals and companies where the individuals or companies have the ability directly or 

indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party in makins financial and 

operating decisions. 

(i) Rtdoemahle pnrti<ipaling shares 

The Company issue redeemable pnnicipating shares which are redeemable at 1he holder's option. Such shares arc 

classified as financial liabilities. 

Redeemable shares are issued and redeem ed at the holder's option at prices based on the Company 's net asset value 

per share at lhe time of issue or redemption. The Co111pany's net as5':t value per share is calculated by dividing the 

net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable shores with the totol number of outstanding redeemable shores. 
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NO'rES TO TllE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. YEAR ENDED DECEMDER 31, 2013 

2. SICNll'ICANT ACCOUNTINC rOLICIES (CONT'D) 

(I) Dtferrcd income taxes 

Deferred income 1ax is provided in full, using lhe liobilil)' me01od, on temporary differences arising between lhc W< 

boses of assets and liobili1ies and ~,eir conyini; omoun1s in 1hc financial s1a1emen1s. However, if 1he deferred 

income ,ox arises from initi:i( rccotlniti-0n of an asset or Jiabilily in u transaction, other than a busi~s combination. 
thol al the time oflhe uansaction affecls neifrtoc accoun1ing nor 1a.,able proit1 or loss. ii is not occoun~d for. 

Defmed income lax is detem1incd u,;ing tax nllcs that have !><en cnoctcd by the end oflhc rtporting period ond are 

cxpec1ed 10 apply in the period when the rclalcd deferred income tax asset is '}31ised or the defo11,-d income tax 

liabiliiy is settled. 

Deferred tax assets ore recognised to the extent thot it is probable thot fut.:: taxable profit will be avoilnble asainst 

which deductible temporary diO'crences can be utilised. 

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANACEMENT 

3.1 FinaTtcial risk fa,•fors 

The Company is exposed 10 a number or finoncial risks includini; currency tis~. liquidity risk. credil risk and 

interest rate risk from the financial ins1rumems they hold. Risk monasement procedures ore in place to minimise the 

Company's exposure to these financial risks. 

Matkct 
The Company's exposure lo market risk comprises of interest rate and currency risk exposures. The Company 
monitor those risks through a process known as 'sensitivity analysis'. This involves estimating the effect on profit 

ofter taxation over various periods of a rani:c of possible changes in intoresl rotes and exchange rates. 

The model used for this purpose makes oo assumptions obout the interrelationships between movements in imerest 

rates and exchange rnles or about the way in which such movements may impact on frte economies involved. As a 

result, figures derives from the Compm1y's sensitivity anolysis inodel should be used in conjunction wilh other 

information about the Company's risk profile. 

Currency risk 
The primo,y activity of the Company is 10 invest in securities and derivatives quoted on the South ;\frican stock 
exchange and tHe performance of the Company is mensured and reported to the investors in USO. furthermore. the 

Company's issues and redemption of shores arc denominated in USO which then represent ~,c economic effects of 
the undcrlyins transactions. events and conditions. However, the directors have determined that the prcscnlation 
currency to be the Euro hosed on the fact frtal the proceeds from investment nnd redemption or redeemable shares 

will be convened imo Euro. The financial statements ore presented in a currency that differs from the functional 
currency. Therefore, oil resulting gains and losses for the ()U'T'osc of consolidating the various cell"s assets ond 

liobilities are accoun1cd for in the consolidated statement or comprehensive income. 

The substantial portion of11te net assets of each sul>-company is denominated in Ibo currency of1he sub-company. 

The following table sets oul the exposure of euch sub-company 10 foreign cu11ency risk as nt the year end. Interest 

r.'<!civable or cxpcoscs payable in currencies ofrter !hon the base currency ore convened lo or from !he base 

currtucy 011 or near the date of the transaction. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

3. FINANCIAL RISK I\IANACEMENT 

3.1 Financial riskfnctnrs (cont'd} 

Currency exposure 
At December 31, 2013 n proponion of the nel financial assets of the Company is mainly denominate_d in currencies 

other than the presentation currency as follows: 

2013 2012 

EUR EUR 

British Pound Sterling (GBP) 411,056,646 48,678,086 

United Stales Dollar (USO) I I 8,083,568 102,844,969 

South African Rand (ZAR) 23,864,909 26 ,032.690 

At Occ,,mbcr 31, 2013, if EURO had moved by 5% to ZAR/GBP/USD wilh all olhcr variables held constant, lhe 

change in net assets a11ribu1able 10 holders of redeemable shares for the year would be as follows: 

2013 

British Pound Sterling (GBP) 

United Slates Dollar (USO) 

South African Rand (ZAR) 

Credit risk 

EUR 
2,002,832 

5,904,178 

1,193,245 

2012 

EUR 
2,433,904 

5,142,248 

1,301,634 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling 10 meet a commitment that it has 
entered into with the Company. The investmenlS of the Company arc determined by the Investment Manai;er in 
accordance with die criteria set out in the Company's scheme particulars. Impairment provisions are provided for 
losses lhal have been incurred by the reponing dote, if any. The Company's maximum credit exposure is limited to 
the carrying amount offinancial assclS recognised at the reponing date are as follows: 

2013 2012 

EUR EUR 

Maximum credit risk 87,777,053 73,118,640 

Liquidity risk 
Liqu idity risk is the risk lhal the Comp;tny will encounter difficultly in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities.The Cells' assclS comprise mainly realisable securities which can be readily sold and their main linbility is 
the redemption of any shores that investors wish to sell. Assets from a Cell may need to be sold if insufficient cash 

is available 10 finance such redemptions. 
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NOTE:$ TO THE l'INANCIAL STATEMENTS- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

J. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 

3 .1 Fiunncitrl rid.factor.t (c<mt'il) 

lntccc~t £ill£ rj~k 
The Company is exposed to risks as:sociatod with the cffocts of fluctuations in lhc prcvoilins levels of mnrkct interest rates on its 11noneiol instruments ond c:1Sh flow. Loons rccdvab lc, Cash ond cash 

c-4uh•alcnts ..ire the only interest bearing fin:mc.iol instruments. 
Assets 

Vari~blc 

intNC~t 

Variable inter~t hearins Non intcrc:o-t bcarin15: bearing 
Co.sh and 

eosh Loons Bank 
<:quiv,1lents r~civable Investments Reecivnbles Total overdraft 

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR 

Generation Life Modcrntc Portfolio 6.515 l.l H.116 73.49S 1,194,126 

Ki,ioni Commodity fund {EUR} 123.808 2,$89,I IS 2,712,923 

Meteor Cleon Energy Distribution 730 

The Apollo fund (EUR) 45,674 1.037,928 1,083,602 

The Diversified Emerging Mort.:ct Plus (EUR) 883 92.406 93,289 

The Exigo fund (EUR) 3.385 259.2$8 2.112 264,755 

The Gold and Precious Metals Plus fund (EUR) 226 28,822 29.048 

The lntemotionnl EUR Money Markel Fund 40.932 40.932 

The Mogro• fund (EUR) IJ.426 142,458 128,760 284.644 

The Optimiz~ Balanced l'und (EUR) 4,410 202,977 5,947 213.334 

The Op1imi1.cr Cautious Fund (EUR) 132 

The Optimizer Growth fund (EUR) 69.529 576,492 116,142 762,163 

The Strategic Gro,-1h Plus (EUR) 17.877 434,559 452.436 

326.665 259.25ft 6,218,873 326.456 7,131.252 862 

ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR 

The Rand Yield JI 

LlablltUcs 

Non interest benring 
Dcrivati\•c 
financi::t1 

instruments t,>nvablcs 
EUR EUR 

(69,934) 24,021 
(93,027) 321,446 

(5,699) 

(6,903) 

(8,742} 

(11.950) 

Cl96.2SS) 

ZAR 

5,385 

9,684 

265 

l ,5.31 

9$.0$3 

221,851 

12.Sl7 

S.873 
697.926 

ZAR 

T01nl 
EUR 

(45,913) 

228.419 

7JO 

5,385 

9.684 

(S.434) 

1,531 

88,150 

213,109 

132 

867 

5.&73 

502.533 

ZAR 

31 

Variable 

interest 

bcorini: 
Tot:ll intcrt"St Sensitivity 

sc-nsitivity anolysis-
g~p 5% 
EUR EUR 

6.515 326 
123.808 6,190 

(730) 07) 

45,674 2.284 

883 44 

262,M3 13,132 

226 11 

40.932 2.047 

13A26 671 

4.410 221 
(132) (7) 

69,529 3.476 

I 7.877 894 

585.061 29.253 

7.AR ZAR 

(31) l2) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 

3. J Finnucial t1:-;k fnctors (cout'd) 
AsseCs LinbiHties 

Variable 

interest 
Variable interest bcarins Non interest bcarin,s bearins Non interest bcarin& 
Cash ond Derivative Total intcrc~l Scn~itivity 

cush Loans Bunk financfal sensitivity nnalysis -

equivalent~ receivable lnv~tments Recei\sibks Tola! overdraft in~1rumcnts !'arables Total !!"P 5% 
GBP GBP GBP Gar GBP Gilt' GllP GllP GBP GIW OBI' 

fortunatus Global Fund 686 384,074 384,760 279 27,215 27,494 407 20 
Kijani Commodity Fund (OBP) 67.940 10.496.392 1.000 10.S6S.l32 (394,792} 70.484 (324,308) 67,940 3,397 

Mauritius lnvC"!-tmcnt M:magement Fund I 6.904 3,765,800 214,046 3,986,750 I 1,315 11,375 6.904 345 

The Apollo Fund (OBP} 147,233 9,543,740 9,690.973 55.965 SS.965 147,233 7,362 

The Diversified Emcrgin& Morket Plus(GBP) 6,356 177.727 184,085 4,297 4,297 6,358 318 
The l:..,ir,o Fund(GBP) 155,865 3,129,155 3,285,020 13.274 13.274 ISS,8t\S 7,79.3 

The Gold and Pn:cious M,-tols Plus Fund (GBP) 17,389 529.461 546,850 47 47 17,389 869 

The International GBP Money Market f-und 19&.082 324 198,406 88 88 198,062 9,904 

The Magma Fund (GBP) 76.446 2.230.337 243.0SS 2,549,838 (63,775) 171,284 107,509 76,446 J.822 

The MCIC(lt Propert y Fund t\23 J 4, I &6, 153 2,773,378 16,960,154 52!1,744 529.744 14,186,776 709,339 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund (GBP) 1,015 76,564 Sl,501 159.080 (843} 76,871 76,028 1,015 51 

The Optimizer Grow1h Fund (GBP) 2,676 240,543 38,836 282,055 (5,678) 1?.932 14.254 2,676 D4 

The Slrategie Growth Plus (GBP) 1,116 11.172.149 65,804 11.2)9.069 77.851 77.8SI 1.116 56 

682.333 14.186.1.$3 41,361.86& .3,&02.018 60.032.372 279 (465.068) 1.058.427 593.618 14.868,207 743.4!0 

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SOD SGD $GD SOD 

The Apollo f-und (SGD) 44,271 602.206 39.923 686.400 846 846 44.271 2.214 

AUD J\UD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD J\UD AUD 

The Apollo fund (AUD) J.696 53,368 57.064 1.125 3.242 4.367 3,696 18.S 

CHF Clff Clff CHF CHl' CHF CHF CHF CHF CHf Cl-IF 
The Apollo l'und (Off) 2.474 136.084 1.000 139.558 (3.519) 260 0.239) 2,474 124 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· YEAR ENDED DECEMBER JI, 2013 

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 

J. I Fhrmiclnl rlskji1c1ors (co1rt'1I) Assets Llnllllltlts 

Voriable interest 
Variable interest beorins Non interest benrins bearina Non interest bcarin~ 
Cash and Dcrivati\.'C Total intcn."St Stnsitivit>' 

cash Loans 8311k financial sensi1ivity analysis· 
equivalents receivable lnvc:stm~nts Receivables Total overdraft in~trumcnts Pn~nbles Total gap 5% 

USO USO USO USO USD USO USO USO USO USO USD 
Ape, Active Funu JOO 9,918 10,218 33 33 300 IS 

Ape, Bal"nccd Fund JOO 9.828 10,128 33 H 300 15 

Apex Caulious fund s.ooo 5.084 10.084 33 )3 5,000 250 
Birds Eye Vic\\' Commodity fund 912 172,421 173.333 14,125 14,125 912 46 

Ouals!.Jr Capital rriv-Jtc Equity Partners - Fund 173.579 2.674.164 2.847,743 15 2,210,070 2,210,085 173,579 S,679 

Dualstar Capital rrivatc Equity Partners. Funu 4,985 370.000 8,)25 383.310 374,985 18,749 
Generation Life Moderate Portfolio 2.414 1.240.220 8.676 1.251.310 IS IS 2,414 121 

Glohal Markets lnv<estmcnt fund J0.678 1.602.596 1&4,8&5 l-818.159 15,776 15,776 .30,678 1.534 

Kijani Commodity fund (USO) 1,537.635 52.817.396 18,466,978 72.822.009 2,719.852 2,719,852 54,355.031 2.717.752 

Kwanda African Gro,.1h Fund (USO) 15,763 IS,623,128 13,804.305 2.185.927 J l.629.123 2,582,372 2,5&2,.372 15,638,891 781,945 

Penk XV Venture Fun<I 272,513 350.000 2,724.255 39,339 3,386,107 2,317,046 2.317.046 (,22,513 31,126 

Quesiuosus Absolu!e Rc1urn l'und 
1 

5,486 1,365.35& 2SJ.I0I 1,623,945 670 670 1,370,844 6&,542 
Richmond Asian Altcmati\'e Opll1;mzcr 2,950,080 1.104.845 1,135,108 56.155 
(USO) 2.237.016 711,777 1,287 I, 101,908 1,046 l,&91 

Sounuvicw Opportunity Fund 3.875 345,664 518 350,057 6,275 6,275 3,875 194 

The t\pullo funu (USO) 76.906 9,920,296 100,000 10,097,202 164,853 164.8.53 76,906 .3,845 

11,e F.xigo Fund(USO) 425.482 5,874,192 6.299.674 506,304 506.304 425,482 21.274 

The Galaxy Alpha fund 184 3,350,055 349,636 3,699,875 54,373 54,J7J 184 9 

The Gold and rrecious Metals !'lu., Fund 1,031,960 20,736 427 21 
(USO) 427 1,011,455 20.078 20,736 

434,031 59 432.665 2 l.633 
The lntemntionnl USO Money Morket r.und 392,665 40,000 1.366 59 
The Magma Fund (USO) 137,812 1,947.327 4.004 2,089.143 47,645 43.364 91,009 137,812 (,,891 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund (USO) 341 627.555 420 828.316 332.504 332,504 341 17 

The Optimizer Caulious J'und (USD) 378 378 2.000 2,000 378 19 
The Optimizer Gro\\1h fund (USO) 20,519 1,413,JOI 23.497 1,457.317 288.625 288,625 20.519 1,026 

T11e RGTO Gquity Optimizer Fund 793 793 (793) (40) 

The S1ra1egic Gro\\1h Plus (USD) 49,945 2.019.107 3.757 2,072.809 1,309.533 1,309,533 49.945 2.497 

Zeus Global fund 121.007 220.594 13K,779 30,374 510,754 138 21.495 10.706 32,339 341,46) 17,073 

5.516.122 70,786,476 49.802.299 21.682.168 147.787.065 l.102.S39 70,201 12,601,248 13.774.288 75.199.759 3.759,988 
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NOTES TO TIIE flNANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR 1!:NDED DECEMBER JI, 2013 

J. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 

3.2 Fair value cstim:i1ion 

The fair value o f financial instrumcnlS traded in active markets is b•scd on quoted market prices at the end of the 

reponini: period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an 

exchange. dealer, b-roker. industry group, pricing service, or rc-gul:1tory agency, and those prices represent actual 

and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market price u~ for financial 

assclS held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level I. 

The fair voluc of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation 

techniques. These valuotion techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely 

as little as possible on specific estimates. If all significant inputs reqbircd to fair value -an ins1rumcn1 are 

observable, the instrumenl is included in level 2. 

If one or more of1he significanl inpulS is not based on observable market data, the ins1rumen1 is included in level 

Specific valuation 1cchniques used to value financial instruments include: 

Quoted m;:irtct pric<..-S or dealer quotes for similar instruments. 
The fair value of interest ralc swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cnsh flows based 

on observable yield curves. 
The fair value of forward foreign cxchanse con1racts is determined using fonvard exchange rates at the end of 

the reponing period. with the resulting value discounted back to present value. 
Other techniques. such os discounted cash flow analysis. arc used to determine fair vuluc for the remaining 

financial inslruments. 

At December 31, 20 13, 1he investmcnlS held by the Company is classified wilhin level I and level 2. 

Assets mt-asurrd ut Cair value Level I Leve12 Level3 Total 

EUR EUR EUR EUR 

Investments 8,031,532 84,386 ,596 92,418,128 

Loans receivable 36,384,151 38,789,530 75,173,681 

Margi n accounts 1.S38,2S4 1,538,254 

Derivative financial assets 756,129 756, 129 

8,031,532 123,065,130 38.789,S30 169,886, 192 

Llabllltlts me~sured at fair value 

Derivative finoncial liabilities 51,714 51,714 

Payables 11,224,205 11,224.205 

51,714 11,224,205 11,275,919 
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3. f.lNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMl::1111' (CON'l'D) 

3.3 Cn11Unl risk man~gcmcnt 

The Company's objec1ives when managing capital is: 

to safeguard the emity's abiliiy to conlinue as a going concern, so lhot it can continue to provide returns for 

shan:holdcrs and benefits for other stakeholders, mid 
to provide an adequnte return to shareholders. 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANI> ,flJDGEMENTS 

l,stimates and judgeinents are continuously evaluated and are based on hisloricol experience and other fac1ors, 
including expeclations of future events that arc believed to be reasonable urer lhe eireun,stancn. 

Criticnl nccounting cstimntC'.s uod us.sumptiuns 

The Company make cslimatc:s and assumptions concerning lhe future. The resulting accounting estimolcs will, by 
definition, seldom equal the related actual rcsulls. The CSlimolcs and assumptions thnt have a significant risk of 
causing a materi•I adjustment to the enrrying omounis of assets and liabilities within the ncxl financial yc-.ll' ere 
discussed below, 

Cojno Concern 

The Company's manas,ement has made an assessment of lhe Company's ability to continue as n so ins concem and 
are satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for lhe foreseeable future. Furlhenmore, 
the management is not aware of any material uncert•intics that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's 
ability to continue as a going co11cem. Therefore. llie financial statements oonlinue to be prepared on the going 
concern basis. 

Deteuninntion offuoctionol currency 

The detennina1ion of the functional currency of the Company is critical since rc.:ording of 1ransac1ions and 
exchange differences arising there from are dependellt on 1he functional currency sclecled. As described in 2(b), 

the direccors have considered those foclors described !herein and have delctmincd thal the prcscntntion currency of 
the eompany is the Euro. 
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s. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 2013 2012 

GBP EUR GBP EUR 
At JanU31)' I, 1,418,480 1,733,326 

Additions 273,893 322,564 1,418,480 1,748,731 

Exchange difference (29,053) !JS.405) 
At D«ember 31, 1,692,373 2,026,837 1.418.480 1,733.326 

The invcstmont properties arc still under development. 

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 2013 2012 

EUR EUR 
Al January I, 31,410 12,144,810 

Loan receivable wnvened into equily 819,037 

Disposals (12,512,148) 

Exchange difference (247,344) 398,758 

Fair value change 6,915,903 
At December 31, 7,519,016 31,420 

A nolysed :is follows: 2013 2012 

EUR EUR 
The Fonunatus Global Fund 30,795 31,419 

The Meteor Property Fund I 

Avolloy Proprietary L,imited 7,488,:220 

'~~l!).016 31,420 

Details of subsidia,y companies ore :is follows: Country of 

Class of %HoldinJ, incorporation Mnin 
shares held Direct Indirect and oecration business 

2013 2013 

Matnnatha Propcnics Ordinary 100.00 Guernsey Properly 

Limited sh::ucs 

Taymouth Estate Preference 100.00 Guernsey Properly 

Limited shares 

Avalloy Proprlctuy Producer of 

Limited Ordinary 56.40 South Africa superalloys 

sh:ucs 

7. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE TIIROUCJI rROFIT OR LOSS 
(a) Movement for lhc year is :lS follows: 2013 2012 

EUR EUR 
Al January I, 268,202,997 93,656,152 

Additions 217,691,166 '.?78,806,087 

Disposals (401,081,627) (94,560,293) 

Trnnsfer to loon (222.S73) 

Exchange difference (2,H21,8SO) (287,516) 

F"air value chang~ 10,427,442 (9,188,860) 

Al December 31, 92,418,128 268,202,997 
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,. INVESTI\IENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

(b} Analysed as follows: Totnl Total 

2013 2013 1013 1013 1013 2013 2013 2012 

CHF AUD SGD USO GBP EUR EUR EUR 

Apex Active Fund (USD) 9,918 7,104 

J\pex Ba1'1Jlced Fund (USO} 9,828 7,IJS 

Apex Cautious Fund (USD) 5,084 J,6?3 

Alhena Fund 88,387,604 

Alhena Special Situations Fund 73,284,663 

Birds Eye View Commodity Fund 172,421 125.135 103.290 

Dualstar Capital Private Equity Partners. Fund 2 2,674.164 1,942,326 

Generation Life Moderate Portfolio (EUR) I.I 14.116 1,114,l lG 925,004 

Generation Life Moderate Portfolio (USO) 1.240,220 900,809 636,035 

Global Markets lnvestmenl Fund 1.602,S96 1,164,014 1,280,607 

Kij'11li Commodity Fund (CHF} 136,084 II 1,004 

Kijani Commodity Fund (EUR} 2,S89.l IS 2,589,115 575,375 

Kijani Commodity Fund (GBP) 10,496,392 12,570,7?4 7,209.744 

Kijani Ce>mmodity Fund (USO} 

Kwanda African Gr,,vth Fund (USO) 13,804.305 10,026,481 11,311,744 

Mauritius Investment Management Fund I 3,765,800 4,510,035 4,692,463 

Peak XV Venture Fund 2.724.2SS 1,978,708 2,041.176 

Richmond Asian Altcmalivc Optimizer (USO) 711,777 St6,9R5 134,888 

Souodview Opportunity Fund 345,664 251,066 448.828 
The Apolle> Fund (AUD) $3,368 34,395 147,156 

The J\pollo Fund (EUR) 1,037,928 1,037,9?8 670,073 

The Apollo Fund (GBP) 9,543,740 11,429,869 I0.059,881 

The Apollo Fund (SGD) 602,206 344,739 693,028 

The Apollo Fund (USD) 9,920,296 7,205,409 6,972,410 

The Diversified Emerging Markel Plus (EUR) 92,406 91,406 127,253 

The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (GBP } 117.727 212,851 1,357.952 

Sub totnt cnrriod ron,ard 136,084 53,368 602,206 JJ,220,528 13,98J,6!19 4,*33,565 58,176,318 211,059.173 
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7. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGII PROFIT OR LOSS (CONT'D) Totnl Tobi 
20ll 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 

CHF AUD SGO USO CllP EUR EUR EUR 

Sub total cnrricd fonvard 136,084 53.368 602,206 33.220.$28 23,983.659 4,633,565 58,176,318 211,059,173 

The Diversified Emerging Markel Plus l USD) 45,535 

The Exigo Fund lGBP) 3,129,155 J,747,570 2,529,440 

The Exigo Fund l USD) 5,674,192 4,266,602 5,449,839 
The Galaxy Alpha Fund (USD) 3,350,055 2,433,245 831,810 

The Gold and Precious Mel'11s Plus Fund (EUR) 28,822 28,822 289,163 

The Gold and Precious Metals Plus fund (GBP) 529,461 634,098 2,365,707 

The Gold and Precious Metals Plus fund (USO) 1,011,455 734,650 3,437,056 

The International Money Market Fund (GBP) 4,014,139 

The International Money Marlcet Fund (USD) 240,655 

The Magma Fund (EUR) 142,458 142,458 296,367 

The Magma F1111d (GBP} 2,230,337 2,671,119 4,098,680 

The Magma Fund l USO) 1,947,327 1,414,402 1,891,821 

The Op1imi2er Balanced Fund (EUR) 202,977 202,977 324,377 

The Optimizer Balanced r-und (GBP} 76,564 91,695 506,465 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund ( USO) 827555 601,078 3,067,558 

The Oplimizer Cau1ious Fund (EUR) 7,412 

The Optimizer Cautious Fund (USO) 2,423 

The Optimizer Gro\\1h fund (EUR) 576,492 576,492 522.268 
The Optimizer Gro\\1h Fund (GBP} 240,543 288,081 275,457 

The Optimizer Gro\\1h fund (USD) 1,413,301 1,026,$23 4,113,687 

The Strategic Growth l'lus (Euro) 434,559 434.SS9 565,946 

The Strategic Growth Plus (GBP) 11,172,149 (3,380,101 19,451,366 

The Strategic Growth Plus (USO) 2,019,107 1,466,538 2,684,220 

Zeus Global Fund 138.779 100,799 1)0,4)3 

TOTAL 136,084 53,368 602,20(, 49,802,299 41,lGl,868 6,218,873 92,418,128 268,202.997 
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8. DEPOSIT ON INVESTMENTS Tot•I Totol 
2013 ?OB 2012 
USI> EUR £Uk 

Kwanda J\fricon Growth F'und (USO) 447,368 
Qui.:stuosus Absolulc Return fund 21,90& 

469.276 

9. CASH'AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Tol•I To1al 
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 1013 2012 
CHF AUD SGD USD GllP EUR EUR llUR 

Ape, Active Fund (USO) 300 218 
J\po, Balnneod fund (USO) JOO 218 
Ape~ Contious fund (USO) 5,000 J,632 

J\thcna fund 35.523 
Athcnn Special Situations fund 112,725 

13irds i;yc \Qew Commodity fund 912 662 29.011 
Dualscar Capiial Private Equity Partners. Fund 2 173.579 126,076 
Dwilslar Cnpi1al Private l:quity ranncrs • Fund 4 4,98S 3,621 

Fonunatus Global Fun:r.. 686 822 342.414 
Gcncr.>tion Lif• Modera1e Portfolio (EUil) 6.515 6,SIS 
Generation Lire Modcrul< Portfolio (USD) 2.414 1,753 58.150 
Global Mnrkcls ln•·estment Fund 30,678 21,282 44,906 

Kijani Commodity Fund (CHF) 2.474 2.018 
Kijuni Commodity fund (!;UR) 123.808 123,808 

Kijani Commodity fund (GBP) 67.940 81,J67 18,190 
Kijani Cummudity fund (USD) 1,537,635 1,116,830 485,706 

Kwanda Africon Growth Fund (USD) 15,76.l 11,449 338,430 
Mauritius Investment Mnoagcment Fund I 6,904 8,268 20.651 
rcol: XV Venture fund 272,513 197,934 20),)41 

Qucstuosus Absohuc Re111m fund 5,466 3,985 386,375 

llichmond /\sion Ahcma,ivc Optimizer (USD) 2,237,016 1,624,312 3,131,533 

Soundvicw Opportunily fund 3.875 2,815 24,690 
Strategic Growrh Overlay fund 3.667 
The Apollo Fund (AUD) ),696 2,382 842 
The Apollo Fund (t;UR) 45.674 45,674 7.360 

Sub totnl orried ror\\'Md 2,474 3,696 4,290.456 75.530 175,997 3,387,141 5,243.Sl4 
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D) Totol Total 
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 
CHF AUD SGD USO GBP EUR EUR EUR 

Suh IM!ll cnrrlcd forword 2.474 .).696 4,290,456 75,530 175,997 3,J87,l4I 5.24J.514 
The /\('Olio fund (GBPJ 147,2ll 176,331 103.797 
The J\pollo l'und (SGD) 44,271 25,343 3,885 
'Ilic Apollo fund (USDJ 76,906 SS,859 49,286 
The Diversified Emergins Market Plus (EUR) 88} 883 8.321 
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (GBP) 6,358 7.615 25,731) 
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (USO) 1,622 
The E<igo Fund(EUR) 3,385 3,385 
The fai~u Fund(GBP) 155.865 186,669 157.340 
The l:xigo fund(USD) 425,482 309.040 399,065 
'Ille Gola.xy Alpha fund 1&4 134 6,359 
The Gold nnd Pr«ious Mewls Plus Fund ((;UR) 226 216 10,349 
The Gold nnd Precious Metals l'lus Fund (GBP) 17,389 20,826 86,346 
The Gold ond l'recious Metal, Plu, Fund (USD) 427 310 22,341 
The lntemotional EUR Money Market Fund 40.932 40,932 111,441 

The International GBP Money Murl«t Fund 196,082 237,129 1,474,491 
The lotemationnl USO Muncy Mnrket Fund 392,665 285,204 117.730 

The Mogmn Fund (EU_ii) 13.426 lJ,426 2S,l76 

l'he Magmo Fund (GBP) 76.446 91,S54 8.989 
The Magma fund (USD) 137.612 100,097 12.139 
The Meteor Property fund 623 746 798 
Tho Optimizer Balanced Fund (EUR) 4.410 4,410 1.402 
TIie Optimi:,cr llalanecd fund (GBPJ 1.015 1,216 6,135 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (USD) 341 248 5,868 

The Optimizer C•utious fund (llUR) 13,266 

The Optimiter Coutious fund (USD) 378 275 2,396 

llic Optimizer Grow1h Fund (EUR) 69,529 69.529 999 
'Ille Optimizer Growth Fund (GBP) 2,676 3.205 9,452 

llte Optimizer Growth Fund (USD) 20.519 14.904 16,586 

The Rand Yield fund 
Tlte Strotegic Gro,vth rtus (EUR) t7,Mn 17.877 10.76? 
The StrJlcgic Growth Plus (GBP) 1,11', 1,337 47,163 
Tho Strutcgic Growth Pins (USD) 49.945 36,277 tl>,371 

Zeus Globnl fund 121.007 87,891 104.011 
TOTAL 2,474 3,696 44.271 5,516,122 682.JJJ 326,665 S.180,1 JG 8,105.138 



THE FOUR ELEMl::NTS !'CC 

32 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- YEAR ENDED DECEMllER 31, 2013 

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D) Tol2l Total 
2013 201l 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 

CHF ZAR USD GBP EUR EUR EUR 
!lank overdraft: 

Fonuna111s Global fund 279 334 220 
Generation Life Moderate Ponfolio 1.5 
Liquidite Private Equity Panners 78 

Meteor Clean Energy Distnbution Fund 730 730 ss 
Richmond Asian Alternate optimiser 1.101.908 800,349 

The Magma Fund (GBI') 2 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (EUR) 132 131 
The Optimizer Cautious fund (GBP) 9S 
The Rand High Yield Fund 31 2 129 

The RGTO Equity Optimizer Fund 793 576 65 

Zeus Global Fund 138 100 

31 1,102.839 279 862 802,223 660 

2013 2012 

Net rash and rash cqulv;1lents EUR EUR 
Bank balances S,180,116 8,IOS.138 
Bonk overdraft (802,223! {660} 

4.377,892 8.104.478 
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10. MARGIN ACCOUNTS Tol~I Total 
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 
SGD USO GBP EUR EU!\ EUR 

Cenermion Life Modcr3te Portfolio 51,235 Sl,235 
Kijani Commodil)' Fund (EUR) 3,846 
KijQni Commodi1y Fund (USO) 1.195.254 868,149 256.151 
Soundview Opportunity Fund (USO} Sl7 376 391.519 
The Apollo Fund (SOD} 65.419 
The M:igma Fund (EUR) 117,528 117,528 
The M:igma Fund (OBI') 242,981 291,001 132.460 
The Op1imizer Balanced Fund (EUR) 297 297 28.1 IS 
TIie Optimizer Balonced Fund(GBP) 77,839 93,222 12S,S97 
The Oplimizcr Gro"1h Fund (EURO) 61,819 61,819 79,024 

The Optimizer Grow1h Fund (GBP) 36,094 43.227 158.112 
Zeus Global Fund IS.695 11.400 
TOTAL 1,211,466 356,914 230,sn 1,538,254 1,240.546 

Margin accounls represent the exchange of traded foreign exchange contracts and futures contracls margin deposi1 amounts held wilh the clearing members and are a fonn of 
collalerals for lbe clearing members. 
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11. RECEIVABLES Tot~l Total 
1013 1013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 
CHF SGD USD GBP EUR EUR EUR 

Lonns receivable 
Oualstar Capilal Private Equity partners· Fund 4 370,000 268,742 

Kijani Commodil)' Fund (USO) 52,817,396 38,362,859 19,333,926 
Kwanda African GroMh fund (USD) IS,623,128 11,347,547 21.559,313 
Peak XV Venture Fund 350,0 00 254,215 
Quesluosus Absohile Return fund 1.365.35& 991.700 
The Exigo fund (EUR) 259,258 259,258 
The 1.nlernational Money Market Fund (USD) 40.000 19,053 30,269 

The Meteor Property Fund 14,1&6,153 16,989,762 17,334,912 

Zeus Global Fund (USD) 220.594 l~0.224 190,724 
70,786,476 14,186,153 259,258 68,663.361 58,449.143 

Other recrivnbtes 
Athena Special Situations Fund 8,301 

DualSlar Capital Private Equity partners· Fund 4 S.325 6,047 

Fortunalus,_Global Fund (GBP ) 384,074 459,979 447,643 

Generation Life Modernte Porlfolio (EUR) 22,260 22.260 95,974 

Generation Life Moderate Portfolio (USO) 8,676 6,302 
Global Markets Jnveslment Fund (USO) 184,885 134,288 19,743 

Kijani Commodity Fund (CHF ) 1,000 816 
Kijoni Commodity Fund (EUR) 19,674 

Kijani Commodity fund (GBP) 1,000 1,198 126.597 
Kijani Commodity Fund (USO) 17,271,724 12~~44.971 2,230,638 

Kwanda African Groo.1h Fund (USD) 2.l&S.927 1,587,704 5,688.212 

Mauritius Investment Manai:ement Fund l 214,046 256,348 67,967 

Peak XV Venture Fund 39.339 28,573 577.SOS 
Questuo.sus Absolule Return Fund 253,101 183,835 1,040,795 

Richmond Asia Alternate Optimiser 1,287 935 
Souudview Opportunity Fund (USO) I 
Sub lotol carried forward 1,000 19,953,265 599,120 22,260 15,233,255 10,)2).049 
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11. RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) Total Tolal 
2013 201.3 2013 201.3 1013 2013 '012 

CHF SGD USD GDr EUR EUR EUR 
Sub totnl mrried forwnrd 1,000 19,953,265 59~,110 22,260 15,233,155 10,323,049 

The Apollo Fund (SGO) 39,923 21,854 23.399 
The Apollo Fund (USO) 100,000 72,633 

The Diversilled Emerging Market Pins (CBP) IS,036 

The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (USO) 2,373 
The Exigo Fund (EUR) 2,112 2,112 

The Galaxy Alpha Fund (USO) 349,636 253,951 232,S31 
The Gold ond Prtcious Metals Plus Fund {USO) 20.078 14,583 76,768 

The International Money Market Fund (EUR) 270 
The lntemalionol Money Market Fund (CSP) 324 388 4,365 

The lnlemational Money M31ket Fund (USO) 1,366 992 9S3 
The Magma Fund (EUR) 11,232 11,232 133,085 

The Magma Fund (GBP) 74 89 127.268 

The Mob""" Fund (USO) 4,004 2,908 36,421 

The Meteor Property Fnnd 2,773,378 3.321,431 3,409.398 

Th e Op timizer Bolanccd Fund (EUR) 5,650 5,650 75,146 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund (GBP) 3,662 4,386 12,$61 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund (USO) 420 305 55,719 

The Op1imizer Cnutious Fund (EUR) 7,785 

The Optimizer Cautious fund (USO) 617 

The Optimizer Growth Fnnd (EUR) 54,323 54,323 86,963 

The Optimizer Growth Fund (GBP) 2,742 3,284 1,161 

The Optimizer Growth Fund (USO) 23,497 17,067 21,938 

The Sratcgic Gro"1h Plus (GBP) 65,804 78,809 

The Strategic Gro\\1h Plus (USD) 3,757 1,729 2,843 

Zeus Global Fund 14,679 10,662 19.547 

1,000 39,923 20,470,702 3,44$,104 95,577 19,113,692 14,669,497 

TOTAL 1,000 39,913 91,257,178 17,631,257 354,835 87,777,053 73,118.640 
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12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Company 1rllde<I in Coniracts for difference ("CFO,") and futures during lhc ycor, T~ gains and losses on these CFDs are included in 1he s1a1ement of profil or loss and other 
comprehensl\le income. 

Futures represen1 conrractual obligations 10 buy or sell financial instruments on a future dale at a specified price established in an organised market The Company enters into single 
stock and equil)' indexed linked futures con1rocts that arc collateralised by cash or marketable se~urilies; chan1,os in the futures contrac1s· salucs are marked to marker and seltled daily 
with the exchange. 

2013 2012 
EUR EUR 

Assets 756,129 39.1 IJ 
Liabilities (51,714) (114,951) 

704 41S (15,838) 

Toi~! Total 
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 
CHF AUD SGD USD GBP EUR EUR EUR 

Dualsmr Capital Private Equily Panners - Fund 2 (15) ( ll) 
Generation Life Modera1e Ponfolio (EUR) 69,934 69,9)4 
Kijani Commodit>' Fund (CHF) 3.519 2,870 
Kijani Commodity Fund (EUR) 93,027 93,027 
Kijani Commodity Fund (GBP) 394,792 472,815 
Richmond Asia Alternate Op1imiser (1,046) (760) 
The Apollo Fund (AUD) (1,125) (725) 8.786 
The Apollo fund (SGO) 13.826 
The Exigo Fund (EUR) 5.699 5,699 
Tlte Magma Fund (EUR) 6.903 6,903 
The Magma Fund (OBI') 63,775 76,379 (78,917) 
The Magma Fund (USO) (47,645) (34,606) 
The Oplimitcr Balanced Fund (EUR) S.742 8,742 S,396 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (GBP) 843 1,010 6,909 
The Optimizer Cautious fund (GBP) 4,196 
The Optimizer Gro\\1h fund (EUR) 11,950 11,950 (24.6S2) 
The Optimizer Oro\\1h Fund (OBP} 5,678 6,800 
Zeus Global fund (USO) (21,495) (IS.612) (11,352) 
TOTAL 3,519 11,12s1 (70,201~ 46S,0~8 196,25S 704,415 (75,838) 
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13. PAYAllLES Totnl Total 
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2Dl3 2013 2012 
CIIF AUD SGD USD CIJP EUR EUR EUR 

Apex Acrivc Fund (USO) 33 24 
Apex Balanced Fund (USO) 33 24 
Apex Cautious Fund (USD) 33 24 
Alhena Fund 13,107 
Athena Special Si1un1ions fund 11,324 
Birds Eye View Commodity Fond 14,125 10,259 9,133 
Duolslar Capitol Private Equity Pmners • Fund 2 2.210,070 1,605,240 
Exigo Fund (EUR) 265 265 
Exigo Fund (GBP) 13,274 15,897 4,993 
Fortunatus Global Fund 27,215 32,594 22.392 
Generation Life Moderate Portfolio (EUR) 24.021 24,021 2,640 
Gcnctation Life Moderate Portfolio (USO) 15 II 2.272 
Global Markels Investment Fund 15,776 11,459 12.700 
Kijani Commodily fund (CHF) 280 228 
Kijani Co~ modity Fund (EUR) 321.446 321,446 7,367 
Kijani Commodity Fund (USO) 2.719,852 J,97S,SI0 405,292 
Kijani Commodity Fund(OBP) 70,484 84,414 24,547 
Kwanda African GroMh fund (USO) 2.582.372 1,875,654 179,269 
Mauritius lnvestntent Management Fund I 11,375 13,623 231399 
Peak XV Venture Fund 2.317.046 1,682,940 2,056,829 
Ques,uosus Absolute Retum Fund 670 487 1,085 
Richmond Asian AltemQtive Optimiz.:r 1,891 1,373 4,366 
Soundview Opportunity Fund 6,275 4,558 13,483 
Str.itcsic Growth Overlay Fund 15,?26 
The Apollo Fund (AUD) 3.242 2,08!) 3,965 
The Apollo Fund (EUR) 5,385 5,385 4,307 
The Apollo Fund (GBP) SS,965 67,025 S 1.327 
The Apollo Fund (SGD) 846 484 29.)49 
The Apollo Fund (USO) 164,&53 119,738 21.039 
The Diversified Emersins Market Plus (EIJR) 9,684 9,684 4,173 
Sub total cnrried forw~nl 280 l.242 846 10,033,044 178,313 360,801 7,864,457 2.924,286 
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13. PAYABLES (CONT'D) 
Total Total 

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 
CHF AUD SGD USD GBP EUR EUR EUR 

Sub toial carried forward 280 3,242 846 10,033,044 178.313 360,801 7,864,457 2,924,286 
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (GBP) 4,297 5,146 34,860 
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (USO) 

2,787 
The Exigo Fund (USO) 506,304 367,744 21,256 
The Galaxy Alpha Fund (USD) 54,373 39,493 6,324 
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (GBP) 47 56 
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (USO) 20,736 15,061 6,960 
The lntemotioMI EUR Money Market Fund l.531 1,531 3,670 
The International Money Market Fund (GBP) 88 105 2,036 
The lntemational Money Market Fund (USD) 59 43 15,746 
The Magma Fund (EUR) 95,053 95,0SJ 95,946 
The Magma Fund (GB!') 171,284 205,IJS 115.832 
The Magmo Fund (USO) 43,364 31,497 67,124 
The Meteor Propeny Fund 529.744 634,437 293,004 
The Opti"'izer Australian Special Situations Prope, 1,367 
The Optimizer Balanced fund (EUR) 221,851 221,851 3,410 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (GBP) 76,871 92,-063 2,400 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (USD) 332,504 241.508 6,410 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (EUR) 

553 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (USO) 2,000 1,453 1,047 
The Optimizer Gro"1h Fund (EUR) 12,817 11,817 2,740 
The Optimizer Growth Fund (GBP) 19,932 23,871 2,416 
The Optimizer Growth fund (USD) 288.625 209,637 1,955 
The Slrategic Growth Plus (EUR) 5,873 5,873 4,356 
The Strategic Growth Plus (GBPJ 77,851 93,237 24,020 
The Strategic Growth Plus (USO) 1,309,533 951,153 4,643 
Zeus Global Fund 10.706 7,776 5,324 
Core Fund 103,209 103,209 71,601 
TOTAL 280 3,242 846 12,601,248 1,058,427 801,135 11,224,206 3,728,074 
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14. SHARE Al'l'UCATION MONIES Toto) To1al 

1013 2013 2012 

THE GRQW! 61:!D THE COMPANY USD EUR EUR 
Kijani Commodity fund (USO) 130,200 94.S68 25,706 

Dualstar Capilal Privutc Equity· Fund 4 5,000 3,632 
The lnternniioMI Monoy Market Fund (USD) 761 553 576 

135,961 98,7$3 ( 26.282 

Share application monies represents advances received from investor$ which ha,, not yet be<:n convened into share 

15. TAXATION 

The Company being the holder or. Category 1, Global Business Licence, is.fiablc to income lax in Mauritius on its 

chargeable income at Ille rate I 5%. It is, however. e111i1lcd 10 o IW< credit equivalent to 1hc higher of actual foreisn tax 

suffered or 80% of the Mauritian l8X chargeable on its foreign source income. Capi1ul i:•ins of the Company ore 

exen1p1 from tax in Mauritius. 

(o) Stntcment of llnnnclol position 

AIJanuary I, 

Chnrge for Ille year 

Paid during the year 

Overprovision in respccl of previous year 
At December 31, 

(b) Statcm•nt of protic or loss nntl other comprehensin income 

Current tax on !he adjusted result for che year 

Ovorprovision in respecc of previous year 
Taxchorgc 

Loss before caxacion 

Tax calculated at the rate of 3% (2012: 3%) 

Expens,<,$ 1101 allowable for tax purpos,,s 

Income not subje<:t to ta:< 

Foreisn tax credit 

Ovcrprovision in rcspix:a of previous year 
Tax charge 

2013 

£Ult 
5,464 

157,129 

(29,908) 

(468) 

132,217 

201.3 

EUR 
1$7,129 

(468) 

156,-061 

2013 

EUR 
(6.378,SSS) 

(22,426) 

776,928 

(595,553) 

(1,820) 

(468) 

156,661 

2012 

EUR 
9.127 

32.857 
(36,520) 

S,464 

2012 

EUR 
32,857 

32,857 

2012 

EUR 
(27,022.822) 

(810,685) 

1,089,024 

(245,482} 

32,857 
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16. NET ASSET VALUE ATTRIUUTABLE TO RED££111AllLE PARTICIPATING l'Rl!;l'ERENCE SUARES 

The Shnres of the Company are divided into Manai.ement shares thnt are Non Redeemable Ordinary shares with 
management votins rights and Cell shares that arc Redeemable Preference Shares. The holders of O,c Non 

Redeemable Ordinary shares have no rights to participate in prolits assets except in a return of ~pi1al in n winding 
up. 

The net asset value per Participating Redeemable Preference Share Class ("NA V per Share") is calculated based on 
the net assets anributable 10 holders of each Pa11kipa1ing Redeemable !'reference Share Closs ("NA V"l al lhe end 
of reporting date divided by lhe period end numbers of shares in issue in that Participating Redeemable Prefer7 e 
Share Class. 

For the purposes of cnlculatins !he NA V. preliminary expenses arc being wriuen off over a thrcc year period, 

commencins on lhc launch of !he Company. However. in compliance with IFRS. preliminary expenses have been 

expensed in profil or loss as incurred. fur1hcrrnore lhe forward foreign exchange contracts were vnlued for 

valuation purposes using the forward close out rntc but under JFRS they have been vnlucd using the ()Criod end rate. 

The table below shows the NA V per Share and by Share Class per cell. 

Number of NAV per 
NAV shores in issue share 

Apex Active Fund (USD) USD 10,228 10,000 1.02 
Apex 13alaneod fund (USD) USO 10,135 10,000 1.01 
A()Cx CaUlious Fund (USO) USD 10,093 10,000 1.01 
Birds Eye View Commodily Fund USO 165,185 119,818 1.38 
DualStar Capital Private Equity Partners-Fund 2 USD 415,222 437,294 0.95 
DunlStor Capital Pri,'<lte Equity Partners-Fund 4 USO 378.)10 370,001 1.02 
The Exigo Fund(Gl3P) GBP 3,445,238 3,341,097 1.03 
The Exigo Fund(USO) USO 6,055,757 5.844.091 1.04 
Fonunatus Global Fund GOP 385,607 423.939 0.91 
Generation Life Modcratc(EUR) EUR 1,242,592 1,191,480 1.04 
Generntion Life Moderate(USD) USD 1,245,991 1,166,066 1.07 
Global Markers Investment Fund USD 1,81 S,S49 1,618,102 1.12 
Kijani Co1nmodily Fund (CHF) CHF 142,847 138 1.036.28 
Kijani Commodity fund (EUR) EUR 2.485,688 2,031 1,224.00 
Kijani Com1nodity Fund (GB!') GB!' I0.88S.S95 8,536 1,275.21 
Kijani Commodity Fund (USD) USO 72.087.895 51,967 1,387.19 
Kwonda Afr ican Growth Fund USO 46,752.883 69,994,360 0.67 
Mauritius lnve~tn1en1 Management Fund I GBP 5,640.075 6,689,697 0,84 
Peak XV Vcnlure Fund USD 1,105,463 1.235,ISS 0.89 
Qucstuosus Absolute Return fund USD 1,621,565 1,690,354 0.96 
Richmond Asian Ahemn1ive Oplimizer(USO) USO 1,845,446 2.153.42S 0.86 
Soundviow Opponuni()' r-und USO 351,655 519.886 0.68 
The Apollo Fund (AUD) AUD 56,408 51.143 1.10 
The Apollo Fund (EUR) EUR 1,146,007 1,094,454 I.OS 
The Apollo Fund (GBP) GBP 9,987,856 9,732,191 1.03 
The Apollo Fund (SGD) SGD 716.336 757,916 0.95 
The Apollo Fund (USD) USD 10,286,079 10.138,726 1.01 
The Diversified Emerging Markel Plus (EUR) EUR 86,619 147,791 0.59 
The Divorsificd Emerging Mnrkc1 Plus (GBP) GBP 17&,611 266,304 0.67 
The Exigo Fund (EUR) EUR 283,835 286,606 0.99 
The Galaxy Alpha fund USO 3,646,397 8,462,548 0.43 
The Gold and Precious Mclals Plus Fund (EUR) EUR 28,794 74,224 0.39 
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16. 

17. 

18. 

NET ASSET VALUE ATTRlllUTA!lLE TO REDEEMA8L11 rARTICIPATING PREFERENCE SUARES 
(CONT'D) 

Number of NAVpor 

NAY shorc-s in issue shore 
The Gold nnd Pr<:<:ious Metals Plus l'und (GBP) GBP 576.564 1,283,205 0.45 
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus l'und (USD) USD 1.020,213 2,104,234 0.48 
The lnlemational ($UR Money Market Fund EUR 43,524 43,021 I.OJ 
The lntema1io11al GBP Money Market Fund GOP 200,388 199.117 I.OJ 
The lmeniational USO Money Market Fund USO 438.774 ;!!:!;~ 0.97 
The Ma_gma Fund (EUR) EUR 224.11 S 0.62 
The Masma Fund (OBI') GBP 224,295 .'!71,410 0.60 
The Masma Fund (USO) USO 2,115,395 2,89.l,S24 0.73 
The Meteor Property Fund OBP 8,150,768 18,711,793 0.44 
The Oplimizer Balanced Fund (EUR) EUR ,:1,554 6,013 0.92 
The Optimizer Balanced fund (GBP) GBP 83,374 131,565 0.63 .. 
The Optimizer Balnnccd Fund (USO} USO 508,306 730,350 0.70 
The Optimiz.:r Growth Fund (£:UR) EUR 694.633 1,399,495 o.so 
The Oplimizer Gro"1h l'und (GBP) GBP 224,295 371.410 0.60 
The Optimizer GroWlh l'und (USO) USO 1,149,546 1.&SJ.811 0.62 
The Strategic Growth Plus (EUR) EUR 47),451 697,340 0.68 
The S1rn1cgic Growth Plus (GBP) OBP 11,813,829 16,293,130 0.73 
The Strategic Orov.1h Plus (USO) USD 879,874 1,413,894 0.62 
Zeus Global l'und USO 484,902 8,236 58.88 

DIVIDENDS 2013 2012 
EUR EUR 

Dividends for 1he year 

13,782,856 

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

The primary activity of lhc Com()3ny is to invest in securities and derivatives quoted on !he Soulh African stock 
exchanw, and the performance of lhc Company is measured and reported to the investors in USO. furihcnnore, !he 
Comfl'llly's issues and redemption of shares are denominated in USO which then represent the economic effects of 
the underlying transactions, events and conditions. However. lhc directors have detennincd that u,e presentation 
curr•ncy lo be lhe Euro based on the fact that the proe<:cds from ' investment and redemption of redeemable shares 
will be convened inti;, Euro. The iinuncial sbtcmcnts Qle presented in a currency that differs from 1hc funclional 
currency. Thcn:forc, all resulting gains and losses for the purpose of consolidatinJl the various cell's nssets and 
liabilities aK> accounted for in the consolidnted statement of profit or loss ond other comprehensive income. 

The following rates were applicable as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 

2013 2012 
Closing rate Av~r~gc rAIC Closing rate Average rn1e 

EUR EUR EUR EUR 
British Pound Sterling (GBP) 1.19763 1.17770 1.22196 1.23282 
United Stntes Dollur (USO) 0.72633 0.75320 0.7567.) 0.77785 
Singapore dollnr (SGD) 0.57246 0.60190 0.61806 0.62259 
Soulh African Rand (ZAR) 0,061))!} 0.07830 0.08917 0.08911 
Austrnlion dollar (AUD) 0.6~449 0.72!>30 0.78463 0.80550 
Swiss Franc (CHF) 0.81570 0.81250 0.82800 0.81250 
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Assets ns l!er statement of fin11nciRl l!osiCion Liabilities as l!Cr statement of financial l!osition 
Assets at fair Derivatives Derivatives 
value through used for used for 
(?rofit or loss Loans and receivables hedge Other financial liabilities hedl!e 

Cash and Cash and 
Investments cash Loans Other Mar�in Total Other eavables cash Mar�in Total 

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR 
Generation Life Moderate(EUR) 1,114,116 6,515 - 22,260 121,169 1,264,060 24,021 - 24.021
Kijani Commodity Fund (EUR) 2,589,115 123,808 93,027 2,805,950 321,446 - 321.446
Meteor Clean Energy Distribution 

- 730 730 
The Apollo Fund (EUR) 1,037,928 45,674 - 1,083,602 5,385 5,385 
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (EUR) 92,406 883 - - 93,289 9,684 - 9,684
The Exigo Fund (EUR) 3,385 259,258 2,112 5,699 270,454 265 - 265
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (EUR) 28,822 226 29,048 
The International EUR Money Market Fund 40,932 40,932 1,531 - 1,531 
The Magma Fund (EUR) 142,458 13,426 11,232 124,431 291,547 95,053 95,053 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (EUR) 202,977 4,410 - 5,650 9,039 222,076 221,851 221,851 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (EUR) - - -

- - 132 - 132 
The Optimizer Growth Fund (EUR) 576,492 69,529 54,323 73,769 774,113 12,817 - 12,817 
The Strategic Growth Plus (EUR) 434,559 17,877 452,436 5.873 - 5,873 

6,218,873 326,665 259,258 95,577 427,134 7,327,507 697,926 862 698,788 

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP 
Fortunatus Global Fund - 686 - 384,074 - 384,760 27,215 279 - 27,494
Kijani Commodity Fund (GBP) 10,496,392 67,940 - 1,000 394,792 10,960,124 70,484 - 70.484
Mauritius Investment Management Fund 1 3,765,800 6,904 214,046 3,986,750 11,375 - 11,375
The Apollo Fund (GBP) 9,543,740 147,233 9,690,973 55,965 - 55,965
The Diversified Emerging Market Plus (GBP) 177,727 6,358 184,085 4,297 - 4.297
The Exigo Fund (GBP) 3,129,155 155,865 - 3,285,020 13,274 13.274
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (GBP) 529,461 17,389 - - - 546,850 47 - 47 
The International GBP Money Market Fund 198,082 - 324 - 198,406 88 - 88 
The Magma Fund (GBP) 2,230,337 76,446 - 74 306,756 2,613,613 171,284 - 171,284 
The Meteor Property Fund 623 14,186,153 2,773,378 16,960,154 529,744 - 529,744 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (GBP) 76,564 1,015 3,662 78,682 159,923 76,871 - 76,871 
The Optimizer Growth Fund (GBP) 240,543 2,676 2,742 41,772 287,733 19,932 19,932 
The Strategic Growth Plus (GBP) 11.172.149 1,116 - 65,804 11.239.069 77.851 77.851 

41,361,868 682,333 14.186,153 3,445.104 822.002 60,497,460 1,058,427 279 - 1.058,706



THE FOUR ELEME:NTS PCC 

43 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS· YEAR ENDED DECEMBER.31,l0U 

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONT'D) 

Ass.ct~ at fair 
As$cts ns ~tr stnftmtnt of financial ~osition 

D~rivativC"S 
Liabiti(I~ •s ~•r stat,ment of finan,i•I position 

Dcrivnli\'~S 
value throu~ used for us~d for 
pcofil or Joss Lo11:ns and r<:cch·nblcs h,dg• Other 11nnncinl tiubilHits hedge 

Cash and Cash and 
c:ish Loons Olhcr O1hcr payable., ca<.h 

Investments eguivolents u:,~b·ahli::: u:~i?ic:Dhks Margin TOia! egulval1,;nU Ma!JliO Total 
USD USD USD USO USD USD USO USD USD USO 

Apex Mtive Fund (USD) 9,918 300 I0,218 33 33 
Apex Balanced Fund (USO) 9,828 300 I0,128 33 33 
Ape.< Cau1ious f-und (USD) S,084 5,000 10,0&4 )3 l) 
Birds Eye View Commodity fund I 72,421 912 173,333 14,125 14.125 
Dualstar Copi1ol Privaic Equity l'anners · F1md 2 2,674,164 I 7),579 2,847.743 2.210.070 15 2.210.085 
Oualstor Cupitul Privalc Equity Partnm. Fund 4 4.985 370,000 S,325 383,310 
Ge11ern1ion Life Modcmtc(USD) 1,240.220 2.414 8,676 1.251,310 IS 15 
Glo"31 Markets hwestment fund 1,602,596 30,678 184,88S 1.818.159 15.776 IS.776 
Kijani Commodity Fund (USO) l,537,63S S2,&t7,.396 17,271,724 1,195.254 72,822,009 2,719,852 2.719.852 
Kwonda African Growth Fund 13.804.305 IS,763 15,623, I 2& 2,185.927 31,629,123 2,5&2,372 2.S&2.372 
Ponk XV Venture fund 2,724,255 272,513 350,000 39.339 3.386,107 2.317,046 2,317.046 
Qucscuosus Absolute Return Fund 5.486 1.36S.35& 253,101 1.623,945 670 670 
Richmond Asian Altematisc Optimizer(USD) 711,777 2,237,016 1.287 2.950,080 1.891 1,101.908 1,046 1.104.84$ 
Soundvicw Opponunity Fund 345,664 3,875 518 JSJ,932 6,275 6.275 
Tho 1\pollo F.und(USD) 9,920.296 76,906 100,000 10.097,202 164,853 l64.8S3 
The Exil!O Fund (USD) S.874,192 425.482 6.299.674 506.304 506.304 
The Gata,y Alpha Fund 3,350.0SS 184 349,636 3.699,875 54.373 54.373 
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (USO) l,Olt.4SS 427 20.078 1,031,960 20,736 20,736 
The International USD Money Market f-und 392.665 40,000 1.366 434,031 59 59 
The Mugmu fund (USD) 1.947,327 137,812 4,004 2,089,143 43.364 47,645 91.009 
The Optimiur Balanced fund (USD) 827.555 341 420 &28,JJ6 332.504 332,504 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (USO) 378 378 2,000 2.000 
The Oplimizcr Gro,.1h fund (USD) 1.413.301 20.519 23,497 1,457.317 28&,625 288.625 
The RGTO Equity Optimizer fund 793 793 
The S1ratcgic Growth Plus (USO} 2,019.107 49,945 3,757 2,072,&09 1.309,533 1,309,533 
Zeus Global Fund 138,779 121.007 220.594 14.679 15.695 510.754 10.706 138 21.495 32,339 

49.802.299 5.516.122 70.786.476 20.470,701 1.211.467 147.787.0GS 12,601,248 1.102.839 70.201 IJ.774.288 
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BV CATEGORY (CONT'D) 
Assets ns ~er <lnttmtnt of tinnndal 11ositlon Liubilities ns (!tf st:-.fement of finantiAI eosi«ion 

Ass.ts 01 foit Dtriuuives Dcrh·~ti\•c., 
val~ through used for used for 
profit or loss Loons ond re.:ei,•nbles hedge Olhcr finnnci::il liJbililics hcdg,; 

Cash und Loons 0th« Other poyablcs Cash and 
lnve.\tments cosh recei,•o.ble receiv::ibles Mor!ljn Torol cash Marsin To1nl 

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SOD $()[) SGD SGD 
The A poll,, l'und (SOD) 602.206 44.271 39.923 686,400 846 846 

AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD 
The Apollo fund (AUD) S3..l6& l,696 57.064 3.242 1.125 4.367 

ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR ZAR 
The Rand Yield rund )l 31 

CHF CHI' CHF CHF Clff CflF CflF CHF CIIF CHI' 
Kijani Cotninodity Fund CHI' 1)6,084 2,474 1.000 3.519 143.077 280 280 
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20. FEES Provision for Investment 

Monogtmtnl ftt expenses (re, ndvisor fee Cus(ody f~ Adn1inlstrntfon fee 
-%ofNAV -%ofNAV -%ofNAV -%ofNAV lnitinl foe -o/oo!NA\I 

Apex Balance Fund (USD) None 0.07% I.SO% 0.10% UptoS.2S% 0.30% 
Apex Cautious Fund (USD) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% UploS.25% 0.30% 
ApexActive r-und (USD) None 0.07% I.SO% 0.10% Up 10 S.2S% 0.30% 
Birds Eye View Commodity Fund 2.40% 0.07% None 0.10% None None 
Oualstar Capilal Private Equity Partners • Fund 2 2% 0.07% None 0.10% UploS.25% 0.30% 
Oualstnr Capital Private Equity Partners· Fund 4 2% 0.07% None 0.10% Up10 S.25% 0.30% 
Fonunatus Global Fund (OB!>) 1.00% 0.07% None 0.10% Up 10 5.25% 030% 
Generation Life Moderate portfolio EUR None 0.07% 2.50% 0.10% None 0.30% 

Genero1ion Life Moderate portfolio USD None 0.07% 2.50% 0.10% None 0.30% 
Global Mark~ Investment Fund (USD) 1.00% None None 0.10% Up lo .5.25% None 
Kijnni Commoclity fund (EUR) None None None None None None 
Kijani Commodity Fund (USD) 2.00% 0.07% None 0.10% Up105% 0.30% 

Kijani Commodity Fund(GBI>) None None None None None None 
l(wanda Africnn Growth Fund (USD) 2.00% 0.07% None 0.10% Up105.2S% 0.30% 
Mauritius lnves1men1 Managemen1 Fnnd I None None None None None GBP4,000 p.o. 
PC3k XV Ven1ure Fund None 0.07% 0.50% 0.20% Upto 5.25% 0.30% 
Questuosus Absolute Relum Fund None 0.07% None None Upto5% 0.30% 
Richmond Asian Alternative Optimizer USD None 0.07% 2.00% None Upto5% 0.30% 
Soundview0p(>Ortunity Fund(USD) 2.00% 0.07% None None UpcoS.25% 0.30% 
The Apollo Fund (AUD) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% None 0.40% 
The Apollo fund (EUR) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% None 0.40% 
The Apollo Fund (OBP) None 0.07% l.50% 0.10% None 0.40% 
The Apollo Fund (SGO) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% None 0.40% 
The Apollo Fund (USD) None 0.07% 1.$0% 0.10% None 0.40% 
The Diversified Emerging Mnrket Plus (EUR) 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Diversified Emerging Markel l'lus (OBI') 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Diversified Emerging Markel l'I~ (USD) 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The E~igo Fund (EUR) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% None 0.400/4 
The Exigo Fund (GBP) None 0.07% 1.75% 0.10% None 0.40% 
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20. l'EES (CONT'D) Prm•ision for Investment 

Mnnngemtnl fee expenses fee ,uMsor rec Custody r., Administration r« 
-%ofNAV ·%ofNAV ·%ofNAV -%ofNAV lnltlnl foe • •;.orNAV 

The Exigo Fund (USO) None 0.07% l.7S~~ 0.10% None 0.40% 

The Galaxy Alpha fund None 0.07% I.SO% None None 0.30% 
The Gold and Precious Metals Plus Fund (EUR) None None None None None None 
The Gold and Pttcic>us Metals Plus Fund (GBP) None None None None None None 
The Gold and Precious Mc1als Plus Fund (USO) l.00% 0.07% None 0.001 None 0.30% 
The International EUR Money Matket Fund None 0.07% 0.50% 0.001 None 0.30% 
The International GBP Money Market Fund None 0.07% 0.50% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Internationnl USO Money Market Fund None 0.07% 0.50% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Magma Fund (EUR) None 0.07% 1.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Mngma Fund (GBP) None 0.07% 1.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Magma Fund (USO) None 0.07% 1.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Meleo, Property Fund 2.00% 0.07% None 0.10% Up tc> 5% 0.25% 
The Optimi2er Balanced Fund (EUR) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% Upto 5.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Balance<! Fund (GBP) None 0.07% 1.$0% 0.10% Up10 5.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Balanced Fund (USD) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% Up10 5.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (EUR) None 0.07% I.SO¾ 0.10% Upto S.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Cautious Fund (USO) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% Upto 5.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Grol\1h Fund (EUR) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% UptoS.25% 0.30% 
The Optimizer Grol\1h Fund (GBP) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% Up10S.2S% 0.30% 
The Optimizu Gro\\1h Fund (USD) None 0.07% 1.50% 0.10% Upto S.25% 0.30% 

The Rand Yield Fund None 0.07% 0.S0¾ 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Strategic Gr0\\1h Plus (EUR) 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Slralegic Gro\\1h Pins (GBP) 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
The Slralcgic Grc>w!h Plus (USO) 0.25% 0.07% 0.75% 0.10% None 0.30% 
Zeus Global Fund 1% 0.07% None 0.10% UptoS.25% 0.30% 
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21. RELATl::D l'AR1'V TRANSACTIONS 

T«nn:s and c:oodilioos of 1rnnsncfions with ~lotrd r,ar11L-s: 

Related panics are ~n1itie$ wi1h ~ommon direct or in<lin.~t shnn:-holdi.:-rs um.Vor dir1.>etors. Punics Jrc consickrc<l to be rclulcd 

if on4! ,xirl)' hus the ubility to control 1hi.:: other party or exercise sig,nilicant influence over the party in m~ing financi:ll :md 

O()\:rating decisions 

Th1: sc.:r\'itcs from related panics arc in the ordinary cours~ of husincr.,.<t, 

Acfmiltl.tlrcJMr, .\"ecrel<.1CJ:,"'011J 
Ueg}.\'trur ht1.VJ:tlme1u Alanuger!Advi:tnr:, 

Adminisuation DjrectOr$ M:na,gcmcnt Investment 
fc-(S foes foe~ advisory fees 

1\1hcnu Fun,! EUR 41,750 

Athi.:n;:, Spocial Situations Fund EUR 34.42) 

Bir<!~ l\ye View Commodity l'unJ US!> 429 1,946 

Exi~o fund (G!lr) G!lr 10.427 45,793 

Exigo Fund (USD) USD 111,412 

Kijnni Commodily Fund (USO) USD I 74,336 1.270,951 
Kwanda Afri= Grow~, fw,d (lJSD) USD 132.971 886-470 

l'onun01us Global Fund GBr 1,121 4,117 

Global Marl:cl< lnvc,imcm fw,d USD 3,946 lJ,755 

Mauritius ln\·csfm~nt 1'·fonug<:fn('nt fund l GBr 4,000 

rcak XV Venture Fund USD 3,255 16,273 

Richmond Asiun Al!omulivc Optimizer USD USD 10,220 67,992 

Soundvicw Opportunity fund USD 2,639 15,128 

The Apollo Fund (EUR) EUR 5,916 23,191 

The Apollo fund (OBI') GO!' 36,091 146.263 

Th~ Apollo l'und (SGD) SGO 3,859 15,154 

The Apollo Fund (USD) USO 39.343 159.0M 

The l)i<crsiliod Emerging Market rlus (EUR) EUR 901 268 

The Diversified lln1crglng Market l'lu.< (Olli') GllP 1.415 1,195 

'fhe Diversified Emergjns Markel rlus (USO) USO 21 17 

The Gala.xy Alph~ Fund lJSI) 7,644 22,021 

The Gold and rrccious II-Mais rlus Fund (USO) USO 7,985 18,763 

The Magma l'und (EUR) l:UR 924 1,575 

The Mogina Fund (GBr) GB!' I0.$83 59.577 
The M,gmu Fund (USO) USI) 62,431 
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21. 

22. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D) 

Adminislralor 1 Sccrela!J!. and 
Registrar Jnvesiment ,Hqnggcr,Advisor.'i 

Adminis1nuion Oirec1ors Management Investment 
fees fees fees advisory fees 

The Meteor Property Fund GBP 24,668 2~ ,63~ 

The Optimizer Balanced Fund (EUR) EUR 851 4,256 

The Op1imizer Balanced Fund (GDP) GDP 929 ~ 68 

The Oplimizcr Balanced Fund (USO) USO 6,757 34,297 

The Optimizer Cau1ious Fund (EUR) EUR 37 
The Optimizer GroWlh Fund (EUR) EUR 2,051 10,255 

The Optimiur Growth Fund (GOP) GBP 848 ,.A.238 

The Optimizer Growth Fund (USO ) USO 9,717 48,587 

The Stralegic Growth Plus (EUR) EUR 1,989 1,575 

The S1ra1egic Growth Plus (GBP) GBP 38,807 39,068 

The Strategic Growth Plus (USO) USO 4,295 2 4,574 

Zeus Global Fund USO 1.597 5,266 

BUSINESS RESCUE PLAN 

Furthe r to financial difficulties encountered by Avatloy (rroprielary) Limited ("Avalloy"), the lancr went into a Business 
Rescue on September 4, 2013. As a consequence, all creditors cat egorised on list Bas per the Business Rescue received 1.83 
cents in the Rand on their claims and the remaining balance amounting to Euro 1,417,894 has been ceded to The Company -
Cell Kwanda Africa Growth Fund ("KAGF"). 

Also. as part of the Business Rescue, the loans granted by KAGF to Avalloy have been impaired by Euro 10,696,490 and 
Euro 819,037 has been convened in10 equi ty which is equivalent to a fresh issue of 11,831,850 ordinary shares issued lo 

KAGF by Avalloy. As at December 31, 20 13, KAGF holds 56.40% in Avalloy and is accounted as a subsidiary. 




